Notes to the Financial Statements BiZ&¥RITMHiz:

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). In the opinion of the directors,
Luckman Trading Limited (“Luckman”) is the ultimate
holding company of the Company, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands.

During the period, the Group was involved in the
following principal activities:

o trading of photographic and electronic products
o newspaper publishing

o commercial printing

o property holding

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

The financial year end date of the Company was changed
from 31 March to 31 December with effect from 19
November 2001. These financial statements cover a
period of nine months from 1 April 2001 to 31 December
2001. Accordingly, the comparative amounts presented
for the profit and loss account, statement of recognised
gains and losses, cash flows statement and related notes
are not for a comparable time period.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS
OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE
(“SSAPs”)

The following recently-issued and revised SSAPs and
related Interpretations are effective for the first time for
the current period’s financial statements:

o SSAP 9 (Revised): “Events after the balance sheet
date”

o SSAP 14 (Revised): “Leases”

o SSAP 18 (Revised): “Revenue”

o SSAP 26: “Segment reporting”

° SSAP 28: “Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets”

o SSAP 29: “Intangible assets”

. SSAP 30: “Business combinations”

o SSAP 31: “Impairment of assets”

o SSAP 32: “Consolidated financial statements and
accounting for investments in subsidiaries”

o Interpretation 12: “Business combinations —
subsequent adjustment of fair values and goodwill
initially reported”

. Interpretation 13: “Goodwill — continuing
requirements for goodwill and negative goodwill
previously eliminated against/credited to reserves”
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS
OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE
(“SSAPs”) (continued)

These SSAPs prescribe new accounting measurement
and disclosure practices. The major effects on the
Group’s accounting policies and on the amounts
disclosed in these financial statements of those SSAPs
and Interpretations which have had a significant effect on
the financial statements, are summarised as follows:

SSAP 9 (Revised) prescribes which type of events
occurring after the balance sheet date require adjustment
to the financial statements, and which require disclosure,
but no adjustment. Its principal impact on these financial
statements is that the proposed final dividend which is
not declared and approved until after the balance sheet
date, is no longer recognised as a liability at the balance
sheet date, but is disclosed as an allocation of retained
earnings on a separate line within the capital and
reserves section of the balance sheet. The revised SSAP
requirements have not had a material effect on the
amounts presented in these financial statements.

SSAP 14 (Revised) prescribes the basis for lessor and
lessee accounting for finance and operating leases, and
the required disclosures in respect thereof. The revised
SSAP requirements have not had a material effect on the
amounts previously recorded in the financial statements,
therefore no prior year adjustment has been required.
The disclosure changes under this SSAP have resulted in
changes to the detailed information disclosed for
operating leases, which are further detailed in note 36 to
the financial statements.

SSAP 26 prescribes the principles to be applied for
reporting financial information by segment. It requires
that management assesses whether the Group’s
predominant risks or returns are based on business
segments or geographical segments and determines one
of these bases to be the primary segment information
reporting format, with the other as the secondary
segment information reporting format. The impact of this
SSAP is the inclusion of significant additional segment
reporting disclosures which are set out in note 5 to the
financial statements.

SSAP 28 prescribes the recognition criteria and
measurement bases to apply to provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets, together with the
required disclosures in respect thereof.
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS
OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE
(“SSAPs”) (continued)

SSAP 30 prescribes the accounting treatment for
business combinations, including the determination of the
date of acquisition, the method for determining the fair
values of the assets and liabilities acquired, and the
treatment of goodwill or negative goodwill arising on
acquisition. The SSAP requires the disclosure of goodwill
in the non-current assets section of the consolidated
balance sheet. It requires that goodwill is amortised to
the profit and loss account over its estimated useful life.
Interpretation 13 prescribes the application of SSAP 30 to
goodwill arising from acquisitions in previous years which
remains eliminated against consolidated reserves. The
adoption of the SSAP and Interpretation has resulted in a
prior year adjustment, further details of which are
included in note 16 to the financial statements. The
required new additional disclosures are included in notes
16, 19 and 33 to the financial statements.

SSAP 31 prescribes the recognition and measurement
criteria for impairments of assets. The SSAP is required
to be applied prospectively and therefore, has had no
effect on amounts previously reported in prior year
financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for the periodic remeasurement of certain fixed
assets and investment in securities, as further explained
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the period ended 31 December 2001. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are
consolidated from or to their effective date of acquisition
or disposal, respectively. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

Joint venture companies

A joint venture company is a company set up by
contractual arrangement, whereby the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
company operates as a separate entity in which the
Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis on
which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution.
The profits and losses from the joint venture company’s
operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their
respective capital contributions, or in accordance with the
terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture company is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Company has unilateral control
over the joint venture company;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Company does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control over the
joint venture company;

(c) an associate, if the Company does not have
unilateral or joint control, but holds generally not
less than 20% of the joint venture company’s
registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture company;
or

(d) a long term investment, if the Company holds less
than 20% of the joint venture company’s registered
capital and has neither joint control of, nor is in a
position to exercise significant influence over, the
joint venture company.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture company
which is subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the
economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in the
consolidated profit and loss account and consolidated
reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in jointly-
controlled entities are stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Goodwill or negative goodwill arising from the acquisition
of jointly-controlled entities, which was not previously
eliminated or recognised in reserves, is included as part
of the Group’s interests in jointly-controlled entities.

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
profit and loss account and consolidated reserves,
respectively. The Group’s interests in associates are
stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
profit and loss account to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in associates
are treated as long term assets and are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entities represents the
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s
share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 3 to
10 years. In the case of associates and jointly-controlled
entities, any unamortised goodwill is included in the
carrying amount thereof, rather than as a separately
identified asset on the consolidated balance sheet.

In prior years, goodwill arising on acquisitions was
eliminated against consolidated reserves in the year of
acquisition. The Group has adopted the transitional
provision of SSAP 30 that permits goodwill on
acquisitions which occurred prior to 1 April 2001, to
remain eliminated against consolidated reserves.
Goodwill on subsequent acquisitions is treated according
to the new accounting policy above.

On disposal of subsidiaries, associates or jointly-
controlled entities, the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of
disposal, including the attributable amount of goodwill
which remains unamortised and any relevant reserves, as
appropriate. Any attributable goodwill previously
eliminated against consolidated reserves at the time of
acquisition is written back and included in the calculation
of the gain or loss on disposal.

The carrying amount of goodwill, including goodwill
remaining eliminated against consolidated reserves, is
reviewed annually and written down for impairment when
it is considered necessary. A previously recognised
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed unless the
impairment loss was caused by a specific external event
of an exceptional nature that was not expected to recur,
and subsequent external events have occurred which
have reversed the effect of that event. The impairment
loss arising on goodwill previously eliminated against
reserves is recognised in the profit and loss account for
the year in which the impairment arises. A prior year
adjustment has been made for the impairment prior to 1
April 2001 of goodwill previously eliminated against
reserves. Further details are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries, associates and jointly-controlled entities
represents the excess of the Group’s share of the fair
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as
at the date of acquisition, over the cost of the acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to
expectations of future losses and expenses that are
identified in the acquisition plan and that can be
measured reliably, but which do not represent identifiable
liabilities as at the date of acquisition, that portion of
negative goodwill is recognised as income in the
consolidated profit and loss account when the future
losses and expenses are recognised.

To the extent that negative goodwill does not relate to
identifiable expected future losses and expenses as at
the date of acquisition, negative goodwill is recognised in
the consolidated profit and loss account on a systematic
basis over the remaining average useful life of the
acquired depreciable/amortisable assets. The amount of
any negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of the
acquired non-monetary assets is recognised as income
immediately.

In the case of associates and jointly-controlled entities,
any negative goodwill not yet recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account is included in the
carrying amount thereof, rather than as a separately
identified item on the consolidated balance sheet.

In prior years, negative goodwill arising on acquisitions
was credited to the capital reserve in the year of
acquisition. The Group has adopted the transitional
provision of SSAP 30 that permits negative goodwill on
acquisitions which occurred prior to 1 April 2001, to
remain credited to the capital reserve. Negative goodwill
on subsequent acquisitions is treated according to the
new accounting policy above.

On disposal of subsidiaries, associates or jointly-
controlled entities, the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of
disposal, including the attributable amount of negative
goodwill which has not been recognised in the profit and
loss account and any relevant reserves, as appropriate.
Any attributable negative goodwill previously credited to
the capital reserve at the time of acquisition is written
back and included in the calculation of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties
may be individuals or corporate entities.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of
whether there is any indication of impairment of any
asset, or whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss previously recognised for an asset in
prior years may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
calculated as the higher of the asset’s value in use or its
net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss account
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, when the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the profit
and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after fixed assets have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the profit and loss account in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset.

Changes in values of fixed assets are dealt with as
movements in the revaluation reserve. If the total of this
reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the
profit and loss account. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the profit and loss account to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuation is
transferred to retained earnings as a movement in
reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each asset over its
estimated useful life, after taking into account its
estimated residual value, if any. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land Over the lease terms
Buildings 2%-5%
Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6%-30%
Motor vehicles 20%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset
recognised in the profit and loss account is the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the profit and
loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under the operating leases are charged to the profit and
loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Long term investments

Long term investments are non-trading investments in
listed and unlisted equity securities intended to be held
on a long term basis.

Long term investments are stated at cost less provisions
for any impairment losses, on an individual investment
basis.

When impairments in values have occurred, the carrying
amounts of the securities are reduced to their fair values,
as estimated by the directors and the amounts of the
impairments are charged to the profit and loss account in
the period in which they arise. Where the circumstances
and events which led to an impairment cease to exist and
there is persuasive evidence that the new circumstances
and events will persist for the foreseeable future, the
amount of the impairment previously charged and any
appreciation in fair value is credited to the profit and loss
account to the extent of the amount previously charged.

Short term investments

Short term investments are investments in equity
securities held for trading purposes and are stated at
their fair values on the basis of their quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date, on an individual investment
basis. The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of a security are credited or charged to the profit
and loss account in the period in which they arise.

Other investments
Other investments represent club memberships which are
intended to be held for long term purposes. They are

stated at cost less any impairment losses, on an
individual investment basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost,
comprising land, construction and borrowing costs where
appropriate, and net realisable value.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on actual cost, first-
in, first-out basis or weighted average basis, where
appropriate and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash equivalents represent short term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which were within three months of
maturity when acquired, less advances from banks
repayable within three months from the date of the
advance. For the purpose of balance sheet classification,
cash equivalents represent assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet date of future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in the finance costs in the
profit and loss account.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
significant timing differences to the extent it is probable
that the liability will crystallise in the foreseeable future. A
deferred tax asset is not recognised until its realisation is
assured beyond reasonable doubt.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

(c) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking
into account the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable;

(d) dividends, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment is established;

(e) circulation income, when the newspapers are
delivered;

(f)  advertising income, when the advertisements are
published or broadcasted;

(g) from the rendering of services, when the services
are rendered; and

(h) revenue from sale of properties, upon the
completion of the formal sale and purchase
agreement.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained earnings within
capital and reserves in the balance sheet, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because bye-law 140 of the Company’s bye-
laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss
account in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the
applicable rates of exchange ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated at the applicable rates of exchange ruling at
that date. Exchange differences are dealt with in the
profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the applicable rates
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting translation differences are included in the
exchange fluctuation reserve.

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes in Hong Kong and overseas for those
employees who are eligible and have elected to
participate in the schemes. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the participating employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the profit and loss account as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
schemes. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in independently administered
funds. When an employee leaves the Mandatory
Provident Fund Exempted ORSO retirement benefits
scheme in Hong Kong or other retirement benefits
schemes in overseas prior to his/her interest in the
Group’s employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group may be reduced by
the relevant amount of forfeited contributions. In respect
of the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme, the Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the scheme.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

SSAP 26 was adopted during the period, as detailed in
note 3 to the financial statements. Segment information is
presented by way of two segment formats: (i) on a
primary segment reporting basis, by business segment;
and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by
geographical segment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other business segments. Summary details
of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the trading segment trades photographic and
electronic products;

(b) the newspaper publishing segment publishes and
distributes newspapers to readers in Hong Kong,
Canada, the United States of America, Europe and
Australia;

(c) the commercial printing segment provides the
services of printing of illustrated books, typesetting
and printing of financial documents; and

(d) the corporate and others segment comprises the
Group’s Internet and information consultancy
services, investment and property holding business,
and hotel operations together with corporate
expense items.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues and results are attributed to the segments
based on the location of the customers, and assets are
attributed to the segments based on the location of the
assets.

Intersegment sales transacted with reference to the

selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 2EESN (&)
(a) Business segments (a) XB2E
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) THREJINAEBREBEMNE H 2K
and certain asset, liability and expenditure @ oomAl (E1E) BETEERABREMN
information for the Group’s business segments. RFAZEHR o
Group Trading Newspaper | Ci ial printing Corporate and others Eliminations Consolidated
¥ 3L 25 BEEH AE AR RERAM B Fa
Period ended  Year ended Period ended  Yearended  Period ended  Year ended Period ended  Year ended Period ended  Yearended  Period ended  Year ended
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001
8z iz B2 BE B2 #Hz 8z iz B2 BE B2 #Hz
Z8%-f -—FT-F -8%-f -TE-F Zg%-§ -TE-% Z8%-f -FT-F Z8%-f -TE-F Z88-F -IT-%
tZA=t-A ZA=+-B +zA=+-8B ZA=+-8 +=ZA=+-8 ZA=t-8 +=BZ+-B =f=+-B +=AZ+-B =f=+-B +ZAZt+-B =A=f-4
Jia:1:) LEE fi2:1:) HFE 2] HFE Jia:1:) LEE fi2:1:) HFE il IHFE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS000
TER TiEn TR TR TEn FiERL TER TEn TR TR TEn FiERT
Segment revenue: ARBA
Sales to external MIRER
customers HE 99,823 281,540 578,315 127,589 347,444 72,062 7,378 4,491 - - 1,032,960 485,682
Intersegment sales ~ AEEHHZ
HE - - 15,061 3,295 2,358 591 2,211 456 (19,696) (4,342) - -
Other revenue A 107 2,203 - - - - 1,418 274 - - 1,525 2417
Intersegment AEEKRE
other revenue ZEMRA - - - - - - 1,586 4,697 (1,586) (4,697) - -
Total Rt 99,930 283,743 593,376 130,884 349,802 72,653 12,659 9,918 (21,282) (9,039) 1,034,485 488,159
Segment results EES (2,103) (12,017) (78,728) (5,031) 47,439 3,077 (67,098) (39,885) (100,490) (53,856)
Interest and dividend 7| & R SMA
income 10,678 33,480
Unallocated gains A RNH 989 4,240
Restructuring costs B4 A (19,043) -
Unallocated expenses 7 5 B FI3 (15,598) (208,616
Loss from operating ~ HE£KER
activities (123464)  (204,752)
Finance costs BERK (424) (266)
Share of profits and EHTRT
losses of: HREE:
Jointly-controlled HEBHAA
entities - - (1,484) (2,680) - - (14,772) (2,632) (16,256) (5,312)
Associates BENR (105) (1,170) - - - - 5,121 (5,032) 5,016 (6,202)
Loss before tax BHAER (135,128) (236,532
Tax #E (18,839)  (14358)
Loss before minority
interests (153,967)  (250,890)
Minority interests DERFER 22,521 5,659
Net loss from ordinary ~ BRRE (5B 7
activities atiibutable £ HEEFE
to shareholders (131,446)  (245,231)
Segment assets PHREE 64,059 92,997 598,582 657,607 347,663 324,093 252,258 231,311 - - 1,262,562 1,306,008
Interests in jointly- REREHAA
controlled entities R - - 55,062 54,249 - - 221,240 191,688 - - 276,302 245,937
Interests in associates REE L 2R 198 304 - - - - 15,343 9,896 - — 15,541 10,200
Unallocated assets AAREE 72 232 12,164 13,049 680 680 39,690 134,831 - - 53,246 148,792
Total assets AEEE 64,969 93,533 665,808 724,905 348,343 324,773 528,531 567,726 - - 1,607,651 1,710,937
Segment liabilities PHEBE 17,139 19,196 131,357 133,435 60,081 64,862 178,728 241,714 - - 387,305 459,207
Unallocated liabilities %7 & & & 213 - 62,793 30,571 25,126 11,825 8,267 6,996 - - 96,399 49,392
Total liabilities BfERE 17,352 19,196 194,150 164,006 85,207 76,687 186,995 248,710 - - 483,704 508,599
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 2EESN (&)
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) XBoE (&
Group Trading paper publishi C ial printing Corporate and others Eliminations Consolidated
3 | €5 BERA EELE] NEAREM B EE]
Period ended  Year ended Period ended  Yearended  Period ended  Year ended Period ended  Year ended Period ended  Yearended  Period ended  Year ended
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001
#z Bz S Bz gz #z 2 Bz S Bz gz
—gE-F ZEE-F -RE-F ZER-F -RI-F —8E-F -gE-f -# -BR-%
tZB=1-8 = tzZA=+-8 ZA=+-8 +=ZA=+-8B ZA=t-8 +=B=t+-B:= tZA=+-8 ZA=+-8 +zZBZ+-B =
LAR LEE FE il FE LAR LEE LEE FE il
HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000
TER TR TR TER FEL TER TR TR TR TER FEL
Other segment EtHBEH
information:
Capital expenditure A4 FE 216 2,440 34,519 340,474 13,661 172,118 805 45,082 - - 49,201 560,114
Depreciation and REREH
amortisation 770 1,205 18,245 - 12,172 - 3,291 8,208 - - 34,478 9,413
Impairment losses
recognised in the
profit and loss account - - - - - - 1,059 151,622 - - 1,059 151,622
Other non-cash EtFERERR
expenses 814 11,223 1,519 - 45 - 27,199 64,267 - - 29,577 75,490
Revaluation deficiton i HiEF
land and buildings BB 313 1,278 20,997 - 7,350 - 2,334 448 - - 30,994 1,726
Provision for properties  # it £41%
held for sale BB - — 1,000 — - — 4,208 — - — 5,208 —
(b) Geographical segments (b) HWESE
The following table presents revenue, profit/(loss) THREVWAEEZWERANE S 2 W= - &
and certain asset and expenditure information for MO(EE)  ETEERAGUERRAZA
the Group’s geographical segments. Ko
Hong Kong and PRC North America Australia and New Zealand Europe Eliminations Consolidated
ERRTE 1% LV EET] ] B i g8
Period ended  Yearended  Period ended Yearended  Period ended Yearended  Period ended Yearended  Period ended Yearended  Period ended  Year ended
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001
#z #z Bz Bz 8z #z #z Bz Bz gz
£ =t 2 23 —8%-F - -g%-% T-F -g%-% -8%-F T-F
tZAZt-8 ZA=t-B +zA=t-8 tZBZ+-A ZA=t-H tZA=t-R ZA=ft-B +ZA=t-A tZB=t-R ZA=1-H
LAE Ji%:3:1 LB %31 il HFE LAE Ji%:3:1 LB %31 il IHFE
HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TEL TER TEL T AL TER T ThRT T FEx Thr
Segments revenue: A EHA
Sales to external  WINEEPHE
customers 541,230 383,611 371,174 77,982 29,857 7,553 90,699 16,536 - - 1,032,960 485,682
Other revenue A 1,525 2477 - - - - - - - - 1,525 2,477
542,755 386,088 371,174 77,982 29,857 7,553 90,699 16,536 - - 1,034,485 488,159
Segment results* PEEE (132,119) (57,219) 16,678 2,536 (127) 116 15,078 il - - (100,490) (53,856)
Other segment EtHBEH
information:
Segment assets SEEE 1,303,983 1,384,198 257,083 285,301 16,191 16,551 30,394 24,887 - — 1,607,651 1,710,937
Capital expenditure ERRY 33,101 447,825 15,502 96,708 338 1,914 260 13,667 - - 49,201 560,114
* disclosed pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules * R I& R A E
6. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND GAINS 6. EEH -WARKRE
Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, EEBEAHPN/ FRAEEERREERES
after allowances for returns and trade discounts; TR FE BREEZETHA B
circulation income, after allowances for returns; net RESITMzESWAEE Btz
advertising income, after trade discounts; the value of BEUARBEUMREW 2B AL -
services rendered; and gross rental income received and
receivable during the period/year.
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TURNOVER, REVENUE AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from the following activities has been included
in turnover. An analysis of turnover, other revenue and

gains is as follows:

EXE WARWKE (&)

UATEBZWADTHAERENR - £XF

Hi WA RWm 2T -

Period from
1 April 2001 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
H-ZEE—F
BA—HZ
—EE-F HE-ZT—F
+=-H=+—H —A=+—H
IEHA IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T FiBT
Turnover EER
Sales of photographic products 4 & % & 23 M E & 97,196 272,100
Newspapers: WME
— circulation income — BEITIRA 114,117 21,823
— advertising income — EBEERA 421,826 96,314
Rendering of printing services 2 4 B ml AR 75 344,536 72,287
Radio broadcasting advertising &4 EEE S WA
income 12,975 2,082
Sales of properties HEWE 4,400 1,674
Gross rental income He W ALz 6,255 1,582
Others Hth 31,655 17,820
1,032,960 485,682
Other revenue H ik A
Interest income B A 8,304 32,903
Dividend income from an KE—IBIFELEMEEZ
unlisted investment 1% B U A 2,332 225
Dividend income from listed KEEMEEZRKREBA
investments 42 352
Others i) 304 2,477
10,982 35,957
Gains I 25
Gain on disposal of short term HERBKRE 2 W= FHE
investments, net 989 4,240
Gain on disposal of an associate & — & QR 2 M 486 —
Exchange gains, net E M2 R R 735 —
13,192 40,197

63
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RESTRUCTURING COSTS 7. EARK

REBRBRNET —RINEHETHIFEE
% E419,043,0008 LA AN - E4H B IEIR
Hong Kong iMail 77 i1 B — 13 A K A 2
HWEAFHEMBME -

During the period, the Group incurred a total cost of
HK$19,043,000 for a series of restructuring exercises to
streamline its operations which include the repositioning
of Hong Kong iMail into a newspaper focusing on
financial news in the Greater China region.

LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 8. REXKER

AEBEZELEEBBREEMG,GEA)

The Group’s loss from operating activities is arrived at

after charging/(crediting):

Period from
1 April 2001 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
H-ZEZE—fF
A—BZ HE
—EE-F —ET—F
+=-—B=+—H —A=+—H
IHH IEFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTET FAET
(Restated)
(&E71)
Goodwill: P
Amortisation for the period/ AR RS R
year* 1,463 —
Impairment arising during ARG, (A
the period/year* — 150,921
1,463 150,921
Auditors’ remuneration: ZER S
Current period/year NERE, FE 2,897 1,091
Underprovision in prior year FTEERETR 140 280
3,037 1,371
Depreciation e 33,015 9,413
Loss on disposal of fixed assets i & & & & E &5 18 1,816 4,587
Minimum leases payments KEMBESX Nz &E
under operating leases: HEEBRA :
Land and buildings T REF 10,028 4,526
Other equipment H iR 313 301
10,341 4,827
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8.

LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (continued) 8. REXKEH®E (£)
Period from
1 April 2001 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
H-EZE—fF
A—BZE HE
—E2-F —EET—F
+=-H=+—H —A=+—~H
IHH HFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FET
(Restated)
(E51)
Staff costs (including directors’ 8 THA
remuneration — note 10) (BIEESEM<e — KH3E10)
Wages and salaries I&E NS 392,899 107,349
Retirement benefits scheme RAKAE T 5T S K
contributions 16,458 4,488
Less: Forfeited contributions W R R (5,927) (1,728)
Net retirement benefits scheme iR /K48 K| 5T 2 {4 7% 58 *
contributions™* 10,531 2,760
Total staff costs BITRALETE 403,430 110,109
Gross rental income HeW ALz (6,255) (1,582)
Less: outgoings o B8 1,619 408
Net rental income itk G (4,636) (1,174)
Revaluation deficit on land and Tt M8 F ~ S E 4
buildings 30,994 1,726
Loss on changes in fair values of & HIIRE N 4 EHE F
short term investments, net B8 F 58 15,598 35,226
Provisions for bad and doubtful 5 fF # &
debts 591 540
Provision for loss on disposal of 1 & [& i & & & 18 # &
fixed assets — 10,657
Provision against an amount due J& Uk — & £ [F 2§l 2 7]
from a jointly-controlled entity I 2 B 11,572 1,360
Impairment of interests in —HEBE AR 2 ERRE
associates 174 701
Provision for properties held for 5 i i & ¥ 3% % &5
sale 5,208 —
Impairment of other investments £ {th ¥ & J5 (& 885 —
Provision against an investment R — X B EA O R 12
in an unconsolidated subsidiary  Z B A 7 2 1% & & - 18,000
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary H&E—EHEBE R A2 EE - 4,469
Exchange (gains)/losses, net EH (W) Ei8FE (735) 662
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HE—EBEQREE (W)
an associate (486) 651
Write-back of provision for long  # 8 K #iR 15 & B &
service payments (2,929) —

Annual Report 2001 #F#g

65



66

LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (continued)

* The amortisation and impairment of goodwill for the period/year
are included in “Other operating expenses” on the face of the
consolidated profit and loss account.

** At 31 December 2001, forfeited contributions available to the
Group to reduce its contributions to retirement benefits schemes
in future years amounted to approximately HK$1,946,000 (year
ended 31 March 2001: HK$698,000).

REXBER (4)

*

AHE FEEBZBHEMAEE RN G EER
e )i -

** RZET—F+-A=+—8  TJHEAEENITR
ARBERAKBFHRZZUBERBELNL B
1,946,000 L (HE—TE—F=-A=+—HILF
£ : 698,000/ 7T) °

FINANCE COSTS il & R A
Period from
1 April 2001 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
H-BT—F
mMA—R=ZE HE
—EE—F T —F
+=—A=+-—8 =A=+—H
IFEA EFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Interest expense on bank loans ZBRAFRNBEEE ~
wholly repayable within RITERZFBEMAX
five years 424 266
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10.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant to the Listing

10. EEm £

AT RARE Em R A MR RHEDIE16115FKEE

Rules and Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance, is ZEEHS
as follows:
Period from
1 April 2001 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
H-ZEE—F
A—RZE H=
—EE-F —EET—F
+=—HA=+—H —A=+—H
IEHA IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiBT
Fees: we
Executive directors WITES 920 19
Non-executive directors HHITES 920 83
Independent non-executive BIERITES
directors 270 173
450 275
Other emoluments to executive  ft THITESZE 2 EM & -
directors:
Salaries and other benefits e MEMmEF 14,251 11,595
Retirement benefits scheme RIREFIE 8
contributions 57 291
14,308 11,886
Other emoluments to an NTBIUIERITES
independent non-executive 2 H A e
director:
Salaries and other benefits FeRHEMEF — 239
Total remuneration B & 4B %8 14,758 12,400
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

68

The remuneration of the directors fell within the following

bands:

10. EEME (&)

EFZMENF THAR :

Number of directors

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

£ %1,000,0007% 7T

1,000,001/ 7T £ 1,500,000/% 7T
1,500,001/ 7T £ 2,000,000/% 7T
2,500,001% 7T Z 3,000,000/ 7T
3,500,001% 7T & 4,000,000/ 7T
4,500,001% 7T £ 5,000,000/ 7T
5,000,001% 7T £ 5,500,000/ 7T

EEAH

Period from
1 April 2001 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2001 2001

H=2T—F
A—BZ HE
—EE-F —ET—F
+=-B=+-—H —A=+—H
IHEAE IEFE
7 13
1 —
1 2
— 1
— 1

1 —
1 —

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the period/
year.

During the period, 12,100,000 share options of the
Company and 8,500,000 share options of Sing Tao
Holdings Limited were granted to certain of the directors
in respect of their services to the Group. No value in
respect of the share options granted during the period
has been included in the directors’ remuneration or
charged to the profit and loss account because in the
absence of a readily available market value of these
share options, the directors were unable to arrive at an
assessment of the value of these share options.

Annual Report 2001 #F#R

AEE/ FENEEHRETLNELXRE K
REAMEZZH -

REEA - BOREERG ESERER
&) & Sing Tao Holdings Limited = & % # &
12,100,000 }% 8,500,00017 ° F1 7 7 7% HA fd 1%
HeBRERSZAIZ2E MSER EFE
AR EERE BE - A& SHERE
ZEBEIARBEEESEHEF  TEREER
KA -



11.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11.

EFNESHES

The five highest paid employees during the period ARG EEREMUES (BZE
included two (year ended 31 March 2001: four) directors, S —F=A=+—HIFE : @) TBZ#
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 10 ZMeFB EB’\J:YW?mﬁﬂ% o RN =ML
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three EeFHESEEE BE_ZEE—F=H=1+
(year ended 31 March 2001: one), non-director, highest —RIEFE: —f)zHMeFBERT :
paid employees are as follows:
Period from
1 April 2001 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
H-EZE—fF
A—RZE H=
—EBER-F —ET—F
+=-H=+—H —A=+—H
IHH IEFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits FekEMmEF 5,729 1,048
Compensation for loss of office BB #H (2 4,113 —
Performance related bonuses HEERBWNE 3,200 —
Pension contributions RIKe K 278 —
13,320 1,048

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

R FEEREZMEN T TIIAER

Number of employees

EEBAH
Period from
1 April 2001 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
M-BRE—F
A—RZE HE
—EE-F —ET—F
+=-—B=+-—H —A=+—~H
IHEA IEFE
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/% Jt & 1,500,000/% 7T — 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/% Jt & 3,000,000/% 7T 1 —
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001/ Jt & 4,500,000/% 7T 1 —
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001/% Jt &7,000,000/% 7T 1 —
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11.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

During the period, 4,000,000 share options of Sing Tao
Holdings Limited, were granted to the three non-director,
highest paid employees in respect of their services to the
Group. No value in respect of the share options granted
during the period has been included in the employees’
remuneration or charged to the profit and loss account
because in the absence of a readily available market
value of these share options, the directors were unable to
arrive at an assessment of the value of these share
options.

12. TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16% (year ended 31 March 2001: 16%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
period/year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

11.

12.

Tfu&E%HEE (&)

REREAN  BREERBz=(U&=HIES
BB Sing Tao Holdings Limited
4,000,000 BE X #E - N EARFEREE R
HrERERZAZ2E MILZEBR EFE
EAEERERECEE  BUZEHERE
ZEBEETABEEEEMNSS  TEEER
KA -

BiE

BEBMNESRIESE FEREBELEZH
AHERBURN - A16% (BE_ZTT—F=H
=t HLEFE 16%) RHERE - REME
FitEZERBGENZHE > DIREEAE
BREZBEARZBITHRE - LREMBRITE

Bl mEREAFE -

Period from
1 April 2001 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
H-BZT—F
A—BZ HE
—EE-F —EE—F
+=-—B=+—H —A=+—H
IHH LHFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET
Group: REHE :
The People’s Republic of China:  # % A R £ 1
Hong Kong BB 5,417 425
Elsewhere EH A B i [@ 66 20
Elsewhere E b5 15,886 14,583
Overprovision in prior years MTFERERE (1,360) (279)
Deferred tax — note 30 EERLIE — MFE30 (1,631) 867
18,378 15,616
Share of tax attributable to: FEETHARITIE -
Jointly-controlled entities HEE S A F 461 (1,258)
Tax charge for the period/year KNEE FEBES WL 18,839 14,358
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13.

14.

NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company was HK$206,166,000 (year ended 31 March
2001: HK$87,614,000).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on
the net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders for the period of HK$131,446,000 (year
ended 31 March 2001: HK$245,231,000 (restated)) and
the weighted average of 1,431,873,113 (year ended 31
March 2001: 1,049,351,298) ordinary shares in issue
during the period.

The diluted loss per share for the period ended 31
December 2001 and year ended 31 March 2001 has not
been presented as there was no dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share during the current period and the
prior year. The conversion of the preference shares and
the outstanding share options would have an anti-dilutive
effect on the basic loss per share for the current period
and the prior year.

13.

14.

BRREGBEEXRBEBREFE

RAHBEP B HRERPRE ZBREERTEER
7% B 18 )% 58 /5206,166,0008 T (BIE T F
—f=ZA=+—HILFE : 87,614,000%
JT) e

BRER

BREANGEVIEAPERERENEEER
B8 7% 58131,446,0008 L (HE —_TZT—F
=A=+—H8ILFE : 245,231,000/ T (&
D) RABEEBETLEBER 2 MEFLHH
1,431,873 113 (BE —_EET—F=A=+
— B IF4EE : 1,049,351,2980%) 51 & -

HRBE_TT—F+_-_A=+t—HLHH
rBE_TET-A=A=t—HILFEZS
BREABERIESBE ZE WA E2T
AHEEEEFE BREEER - XLIRE
FERR M RATIE 2 B A ] BB 1 F
EFEEZERENAERABREBERXE -
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15. FIXED ASSETS

15. B E&EE

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold and Motor
buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
it HE &RA-#B
kEF MEEE e RE G
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET AT THET THETL THET
Group N |
Cost or valuation: RAEREE -
At 1 April 2001 RZZE—F
MmA—H 438,216 2,816 418,226 1,022 860,280
Additions NE 1,511 1,415 45,968 — 48,894
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBAF — — 307 - 307
Disposals & (5,193) — (56,577) — (61,770)
Deficit on revaluation BB (36,165) — — — (36,165)
Exchange realignment B E (1,568) — (124) — (1,692)
At 31 December 2001 R-ZE-F
+=ZA=+-H 396,801 4,231 407,800 1,022 809,854
Analysis of cost or valuation: RABEREED I
At cost BHAE — 4,231 407,800 1,022 413,053
At 31 December 2001 valuation RZTT—F
+=ZA=+—-H
Zh(E 396,801 — — — 396,801
396,801 4,231 407,800 1,022 809,854
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE
At 1 April 2001 RZEE—F
MmA—H 1,480 511 282,158 205 284,354
Provided during the period AEEMERR 7,338 782 24,742 153 33,015
Disposals & (193) — (48,843) — (49,036)
Deficit on revaluation BB (8,620) - - — (8,620)
Exchange realignment B (5) — (128) — (128)
At 31 December 2001 —2E-F
+-B=+-H - 1,293 257,934 358 259,585
Net book value: BREFAE -
At 31 December 2001 R-B%2-%
+=ZA=+-H 396,801 2,938 149,866 664 550,269
At 31 March 2001 R-_EE—F
—A=+—-H 436,736 2,305 136,068 817 575,926

72
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15. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

15. BIE&EE (&)

Furniture,
Land and fixtures and Motor
buildings equipment vehicles Total
T i B £B8
RigF REE RE &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Company ¥ NN
Cost or valuation: RAESKEE -
At 1 April 2001 RZET—F
MmA—H 7,000 5,318 521 12,839
Additions nNE 1,300 32 — 1,332
Disposals & - (4,835) — (4,835)
Deficit on revaluation = E A (200) — — (200)
At 31 December 2001 R-BE—F
+=-H=+—H 8,100 515 521 9,136
Analysis of cost or valuation: X AN{E S EE DT
At cost BB — 515 521 1,036
At 31 December 2001 BT —F
valuation +-—A=+—H
Z 1A 8,100 — — 8,100
8,100 515 521 9,136
Accumulated depreciation: BEHIE
At 1 April 2001 RZET—F
mA—H — 177 105 282
Provided during the period REM T ERBE 105 232 78 415
Disposals & — — — —
Deficit on revaluation B EA (105) — — (105)
At 31 December 2001 R-BE—F
+=-HA=+—H — 409 183 592
Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 December 2001 R-BE—F
+=-HA=+—H 8,100 106 338 8,544
At 31 March 2001 R-BE-F
=A=+—H 7,000 5,141 416 12,557

At 31 December 2001, the Group leased to third parties
certain land and buildings under operating leases, further
details of the operating leases are included in note 36 to
the financial statements.

RZZEZE—F+_A=+—0 TEERE
REMERMZUE=FHEE T L R1E
FoABKEHEZE—FFHE  HIRNH
5 K MY 7E36 °
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15. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 15. B EEE (&)
The land and buildings of the Group included above are T AEEZ + M REFRTIHEESF B
held under the following lease terms: I
Hong Kong PRC Elsewhere Total
L H Hthith 5 &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T FHET FET

Freehold KA — — 90,801 90,801

Long term leases RHEIHEE 46,600 1,300 — 47,900

Medium term leases FHIREE 224,300 33,800 —_ 258,100

270,900 35,100 90,801 396,801
The land and buildings of the Company included above LHARRR Z T REFIR T HEEF
are held under the following lease terms: A
Hong Kong PRC Total
BB H =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FETT FET
Long term leases REHEE — 1,300 1,300
Medium term leases hHITES 6,800 — 6,800
6,800 1,300 8,100

All of the land and buildings of the Group and of the
Company were revalued individually at 31 December
2001 by Chung, Chan & Associates, Jones Lang LaSalle
Limited and Cushman & Wakefield of Asia Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers, at an
aggregate value of HK$396,801,000 and HK$8,100,000,
respectively, on an open market value and existing state/
use basis. An aggregate revaluation surplus of
HK$3,449,000 attributable to the Group has been
credited to the Group’s land and building revaluation
reserve. An aggregate revaluation deficit attributable to
the Group and the Company of HK$30,994,000 (31
March 2001: HK$1,726,000) and HK$95,000 (31 March
2001: HK$448,000), respectively, have been charged to
the profit and loss account.

Had all the land and buildings of the Group and the
Company been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation, the carrying values of these properties
would have been stated at approximately
HK$434,805,000 (31 March 2001: HK$444,863,000) and
HK$9,444,000 (31 March 2001: HK$8,505,000),
respectively.

At 31 December 2001, certain of the Group’s fixed assets
with an aggregate net book value of approximately
HK$155,000,000(31 March 2001: HK$180,000,000) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group.

Further particulars of the Group’s land and buildings are
included on pages 116 to 119 of this annual report.
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AEEBEARRRZAELIHEEFELR S
TE—F+ A=+ HEBUFELSER
HERM — ®H&77 - HE7T% Cushman &
Wakefield of Asia Limited 2 AR M {E &I
B8 B i E ¥ {5 E 5 396,801,00008 7T &
8,100,000/8 7T - AEBEL 2 EHRHAT
43,449,000/ 70 - EBRAEBR 2 L RIEF
EEMFEEG MAEBRARAERZEGHE
Ah 4B %EE 9 B4 £30,994,0008 0 (T E —4F
=A=+—H : 1,726,000 7T) % 95,000/8
T(ZZEZ—F=H=+—H : 448,000/
JC)  BERIERERPIHIR -

MAEERARRE T REFHZKAR
BERZBATENR  UZRSMEZRAENE
2 R #) 5434,805,0008 T (2T —F= A
=+—H : 444,863,000 7T) }29,444,000/8
T(ZEZT—F=F=+—H : 8,505,000/
JC) °

R-_EE—F+_A=+—H0 KXEBET
IR FE 4% 4 5155,000,0008 T (—EZ
—®#=HF=+—H : 180,000,000/ 7T) Z @
FTEE DEEHEALAEEERZ —RIE
THERRE KT -

ERAEBE LMW REBF2HE— TS
FIRARFHRZFE116E119E -
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16. GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE GOODWILL 16. HEREFHE
SSAP 30 was adopted during the period, as detailed in AHBERMAGHEBRERNEI05 - FEHR
note 3 to the financial statements. The amounts of the B RS R M 513 o BRI U B B /8 12 A1 AN £ [R) 2= )
goodwill capitalised as an asset in the consolidated NRAMELEYCERAEERBERANERL
balance sheet, arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries EREEZHBNT :
and jointly-controlled entities, are as follows:
Group rEE
Goodwill
arising on
acquisition
Goodwill of jointly-
arising on controlled
acquisition entities
of subsidiaries (Note 19)
g L [E
ZH A A
Wy B Bt B A F FEEZHE
FEEZHE (HzE19)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Cost: B ANE
At beginning of period iR — —
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —RHWEB AR 5,952 —
Acquisition of jointly-controlled e i 2k [R) 4% 1 2 &)
entities — 16,130
At 31 December 2001 —EE-F+_A=1+—H 5,952 16,130
Accumulated amortisation and B2 EERRE -
impairment:
At beginning of period LK) — —
Amortisation provided during HA A B SH A
the period — (1,463)
At 31 December 2001 —EE-F+_A=+—H — (1,463)
Net book value: FRTEFEE -
At 31 December 2001 —EE-F+_A=+—H 5,952 14,667
At 31 March 2001 —EE-F=A=+—H — —
As detailed in note 3 to the financial statements, the W IR FESATIL - AEE D EHMAE

Group has adopted the transitional provision of SSAP 30
which permits goodwill and negative goodwill in respect
of acquisitions which occurred prior to 1 April 2001, to
remain eliminated against reserves or credited to the

capital reserve, respectively.

FHE RIS 3057 Z BIR IR - RSUERF =
EE-FMOA-HAMETZIRBRELZRE
BRNARE WUORESEREALHME

BAANBERERT -
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16.

17.

GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE GOODWILL
(continued)

Due to the adoption of SSAP 31, the Group has adopted a
policy to assess goodwill previously eliminated against
capital reserve for impairment. As a result, the Group has
recognised impairment of goodwill of HK$150,921,000 in
respect of the Group’s acquisition of interests in a jointly-
controlled entity in the prior year. This change of accounting
policy has been accounted for retrospectively as a prior
year adjustment in accordance with the transitional
provisions of SSAP 30. Accordingly, the cumulative effect on
the prior year was to increase the net loss from ordinary
activities attributable to the shareholders for the year ended
31 March 2001 and the Group’s accumulated losses and
capital reserve at 31 March 2001 by HK$150,921,000. The
prior year adjustment has no effect on the Group’s net
assets at 1 April 2001.

The aggregate amount of the negative goodwill remaining
in capital reserve, arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries prior to 1 April 2001 was HK$212,827,000 as

16.

MRERA T @t EKERIE315 - AKER
HptHe—HEF R FHEEERNFERE
AEHEZHBEREHEARE ARELERM
FFEEMBEZ —MARZES AR 2N

e 3R 7 2R 5 150,921,0000% 7T © = ITE & 51K
REKEWVERELFE  UIRGAEHE
AIF 302 BEGEL EFERAE - B
- BEFERSRZBFAZERE - 8E
—EE-F-A=t+-BLEFEZBRRER
BEXREERIR URAEER_TT—
FZA=t—BZRAFBERERFHEFEE N
150,921,000 T - FFEABWELZELAE
ER _—ZEZT-FOA-—BZEEFHE-

“EE-FMA-HAWEBNBARMREL
ZEBER_TET-FOA-AUR-_ZEZT
—¢+ RA=+—HZ#%%212,827,000/&

at 1 April 2001 and 31 December 2001. CNEBRBEELREENR -
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. A B AR 2 E &=
Company
KA T
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
—EBER-F —EET—F
+=—HA=+—8H —A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Unlisted shares, at cost EETRG - KA E 115,258 110,268
Less: provisions for impairment & : J&1E % & (110,258) (88,108)
5,000 22,160
Due from subsidiaries JFE W B B8 B BRI 1,030,764 942,069
Less: provisions against amounts & : & UKt B A 7 wAlﬁﬁéﬁ
due from subsidiaries (245,425) (66,504)

785,339 875,565
Due to subsidiaries FET BB A Al R IE (25,214) (5,318)

765,125 892,407
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- HfBARI v Bz &R ABRER 28 k1
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. EEEENRE -
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 R-ZEE—F+_A=+—B2ZWBRAF
December 2001 are set out in note 40 to the financial 5 R FE40A o

statements.
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18.

INVESTMENT IN AN UNCONSOLIDATED
SUBSIDIARY

18. R—EREESHBREEZNE QT

ZRE

Group and Company
KEBRART

31 December 31 March

2001 2001

—EE—-F —EE—F

+=—H=+—H —A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FiBT

Unlisted shares, at cost EETKGD - BERAE 36,000 36,000
Less: Provisions for impairment & : JBl (& % & (36,000) (36,000)

The investment represents the cost incurred by the
Company under an agreement completed in January
2000 (the “Agreement”) to acquire a 70% equity interest
in Artland International Limited (“Artland”), an investment
holding company incorporated in Hong Kong, the sole
asset of which is a 50% equity interest in Sichuan Allday
TV Development Co., Ltd. (“Sichuan Allday”), a Sino-
foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC. As at
31 December 2001 and 31 March 2001, of the total
consideration of HK$36,000,000, the Company had paid
HK$18,000,000; the remaining HK$18,000,000 of the
original purchase consideration has been included as a
liability in other payables and accruals.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the vendors are responsible,
inter alia, to procure for the appointment of the
Company’s representatives as directors of Sichuan
Allday. However, up to the date of approval of these
financial statements, the vendors have not been able to
honour their obligations under the Agreement, including
significantly the obligations relating to the appointment of
directors representing Artland, and hence the Company,
in Sichuan Allday. As a result, the Group has been unable
either to participate in the management of its investment,
or to obtain any financial information of Sichuan Allday.
Against this background, the directors consider that in
substance the Group is unable to exercise effective
control over its investment as a whole and, accordingly,
have accounted for Artland as an unconsolidated
subsidiary.

Although the Group had resumed discussion with the
PRC joint venture partner of Sichuan Allday, up to the
date of approval of these financial statements, the Group
had not been able to obtain the financial information of
Sichuan Allday nor has there been any progress on the
discussion of cooperation.

ZBREREARABREBE-—BR_ZZTLTF
— Ak e mE ([ZmnEl) - WESEEER
ARAE ([2E]) 270%B NESMEE 2
A - BEE—HREBEMK L RERE
RAR - HEE—EERAES —HMAEPEKL
ZHIINEERELE — W2 RERERE
ARAA (T2 XR]) Z250% AR o 1
ZEE—FF+ A=+ —BHERZZEE—F=
A=+—8H ' £E# £ E36,000,000/5 L+ -
A A A B X 1 18,000,000 T - £ %
18,000,000/ 8 7T 2 R IEEREE 5 A H b
ERFEREFRZIBEERAE -

RigZh® ELVEET(BREAMBER) R
EARFRZRREZERONERZES -
AR BEEHFUHRREMSLEZARL -
BENNMAREREZHZEETREZEML &
EZNBRABENIEZREZERRES (&
MRKRARR]) ZEE - At - AEERES
HEMREZARZEEE - MAREIREN
NEXROEFRMBEN HEHSEST  EF
RESASEER LIDREHMIRE Z AR
EEREERZFE  AUESBEEUAKRBHES
PR R IE 2 P B A A HI R -

#AKEEEEED) 2R HPES B
BT - AT AELSHBEREL
B2 B AL AEERRERENI R X
ME AR T EEARAIES AL AE
MR -
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18.

19.

INVESTMENT IN AN UNCONSOLIDATED
SUBSIDIARY (continued)

In view of the significant uncertainty over the vendors’
ability to fulfill their obligations in respect of the Group’s
investment in Sichuan Allday and the uncertainty
regarding future cooperation opportunities with the joint
venture partner and, hence the Group’s ability to
participate in the management and secure its interest in
Sichuan Allday, the directors consider it is prudent to
make a full provision of HK$36,000,000 against the
Group’s interest in Artland.

As extracted from the unaudited management accounts,
the deficiency of assets of Artland as at 31 December
2001 was HK$23,041,000 (31 March 2001:
HK$23,024,000) and the Group’s share thereof was
HK$16,129,000 (31 March 2001: HK$16,117,000). The
post-acquisition loss of Artland for the period ended 31
December 2001 was HK$17,000 (year ended 31 March
2001: HK$133,000) and the Group’s share thereof was
HK$12,000 (year ended 31 March 2001: HK$93,000).

No guarantee had been given by the Group to Artland or
its creditors and thus no contingent liability in respect
thereof is considered likely to arise.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

18.

19.

R-BEBREEEGHEREEZHE QT
ZRE (#)

ERETETERTABASERO)IZRZ
KREZEXEFEEARM MAERKREASE
CEBHAEZRSLTHN  ERAEHE
EE2EBEEBYBRRAROIIER 2 EE
TR BUEEAFERER  RAKERMT
Il &K 2 ¥ % 1F [ 36,000,000/% 7T 2 2 8 #
e

BIEREEZEEERERS  R_TE—F+=
A=+—8  ##2&EEH4 523,041,000
B (CEZT—F=ZF=+—H : 23,024,000
BIT) - A E FEAL 805 A16,129,0007 TT
—FE—F=ZA=+—8 : 16,117,000
L) BE_ZE—F+_A=+—HI1LH
M- 282 W EIEA17,0008 T (B2 =
TE—F=A=+—HILFE : 133,000%
JT) C AEBEGEEEA12,0008 T (BE =
TET—F=AH=+—HIEFE : 93,0005
JL) ©

MARANEEY EABEREEREAEDEMR
BER BESEREMEETMEIAEE -

RABZEF QAT 2 E#H

Group
rE
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
—EE—F —ET—F
+=—A=+-—8 =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Share of net assets e EEFE 181,371 165,100
Goodwill on acquisition — note 16 WHEEEZEE — fiit16 14,667 —
196,038 165,100
Due from jointly-controlled entities [ U £ [F 4% #l| 2 71 7k 1B 417,377 414,739
Less: Provisions against amounts 3, : J& U 3£ [F 12 &) 2 &
due from jointly-controlled SRIE 2 B
entities (337,113) (825,541)
80,264 89,198
276,302 254,298
Due to jointly-controlled entities &~ Z R 2 Il A 71 5k B — (8,361)
276,302 245,937
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19.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

Except for an amount of HK$4,711,000 due to a jointly-
controlled entity which was unsecured, interest-free,
repayable on or before 3 March 2002 and, accordingly,
has been included in current liabilities, the remaining
balances with the jointly-controlled entities have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Particulars of the principal jointly-controlled entities,
which are held indirectly through subsidiaries, are as
follows:

19. RERBEH QAT 2ERS (£)

ERNERESHARIREFR BT 25
4,711,000 TZHR - F = A =H=MN
AIEECEERAERE(BEWNAREERE)
Sh o BEBEEH AR ZHE 2 EHRITEETE
FRER o

AEBEFZBNBAREERAEZ I ERAMAE
Bl AR ZFRMAT ¢

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity attributable
Business registration to the Group Principal
Name structure and operations 31 December 31 March  activities
2001 2001
rEBEGARE
EMREL B
=x: EX X BRREE R —EE-F —TE-F IEEK
ZA=+—8B =A=+—H
Beelink Information Corporate People’s 40 40  Provision
Technology Co., Ltd. 1% Republic of of technical
BEMERR China support and
BRAA PEARLTE consultancy
services for
Internet
service
providers
/% BB 48 AR 745 1
& P B S Al
X 1& KA
AR 75
Beijing Xinhua TV Corporate People’s 49 —  Provision of
Broadcasting Limited® 1% Republic of consultancy
China services on
hEARLTE film production
and sale
of film
broadcasting
rights
REFEIFRM
FERRTS -
HEBER
HE e
Liancheng Hudong Corporate People’s 20 —  Software
Software Co. Ltd.* (- Republic of development
56K B B) X1 China L/ T
BR AR hEARKINE
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19.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

Place of

incorporation/

RABESHRXAz2ERE (&)

Percentage of

equity attributable

Business registration to the Group Principal
Name structure and operations 31 December 31 March  activities
2001 2001
AEBELERE
EMEL Aot
=x: EX X BERRE R —E2-F —TE-F IEXEK
+=ZA=+—-8 =ZHA=+—H
Xinhua Online Info- Corporate People’s 55 —  Provision of
tech Company Limited &% Republic of value-added
MEEGE B China PRC business
BRAA hEARKA information
REPERE
BEEA
Premier Printing Corporate Hong Kong 37 37  Printing
Group Limited* (S BE E Jil
H iR 2 & N &
BR AR
Sing Tao Daily Corporate Canada 19 19  Newspaper
Limited (S msx publishing
wEET
Sing Tao Newspapers Corporate Canada 37 37 Newspaper
(Canada 1988) Limited 1% mexX production
RERIE
Singdeer Joint Unincorporated Canada 37 37 Hotel
Venture? FE A 2 meExX operations
R

The financial statements of the above jointly-controlled
entities are coterminous with those of the Group except
for Singdeer Joint Venture (“Singdeer”) which has a
financial year ended 31 March 2002. The Group’s
financial statements have taken into account the results
of Singdeer between 1 April 2001 and 31 December
2001.

The above table lists the jointly-controlled entities of the
Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the period or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other jointly-controlled entities would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

All the above investments in jointly-controlled entities are
indirectly held by the Company.

# Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other Ernst & Young
International member firms
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LA E2kR#ZESIARH - BT Singdeer Jomt
Ventures ([ Singdeer|) 2 T BFER =T Z
_i_ﬂ_Jr AScésh - Bz BBk
HERHEAEEER - $'§l25ﬂ%$&i€
B&BE Singdeer HZZEZ—F WA —H
ZEET-F+_A=T—HZEE-

EZERRLERIB 2 AKELREZEHQ
BEYEANEELARHECESA I%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%

BMEEECEIEZMNN  EFRR/FARFH

MHERAZEH AR ZFEESREBEER TR

A E&HRZES A
5o

A2 R E B R AR E

# WIALZKETMEBHAMRL Ernst & Young
International 2 X & ‘A 7] BT 8 1%



20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 200 ABtERRIZRER
Group Company
KEH ¥ NN
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2001 2001 2001 2001
—EE-F —ZZTT—F —E2E-F —ZETT—F
+=A=+-8 =A=+—8 +=A=+-8 =A=+—~
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FH&TT THT FH& T
Unlisted shares, at cost LMD - K AE — — 10,729 10,729
Less: Provisions for W R EREE
impairment — — (10,729) (10,559)
— — — 170
Share of net assets JE(E & EFE 5,320 478 —_ —
Due from associates JFE Wi Bt & 8 |) B 21,358 21,358 —_ —
Less: Provisions for Ve WH&H?*A’\
amounts due from NI
associates (11,137) (11,137) — —
15,541 10,699 — 170
Due to associates JE S B 2 N B FR A — (499) — (499)
15,541 10,200 — (329)

The amounts due from associates are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

EWHERA 2 RASEER 2R RLE

B EERE -
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20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

20.

RBERT 2 ERH (&)

TEHBATZHBMT

Percentage of ownership

interest attributable

Business registration to the Group Principal
Name structure and operations 31 December 31 March  activities
2001 2001
AEBELERE
EMEL Aot
=x: EX X BRERKE B —E2-F —TE-F IEXEK
+=ZA=+—-8 =ZHA=+—H
Tianjin Jinke Corporate People’s 49 49  Manufacturing
Electronics Industry (S Republic and sale of
Co., Ltd.* of China communication
RERBEFIE FEARALFME and electronic
BRAAE products
SUE N EB
EFEm
Dragon Fly Assets Corporate British Virgin 37" 37*  Investment
Limited (S Islands holding
RBRERES REER
* Held indirectly through a subsidiary * BB RARMRERE
# Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other Ernst & Young # WIMZKEFMERZME Ernst & Young

International member firms

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the period or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
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EERRLERIBZAEEBRERR £ &
FEAKBEARECRE  HEKAREF
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21. INVESTMENTS

Long term investments, at cost

21. ®E

RUKRE  BEAE

Group
NE
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
—EE-F —EET-F
+=—HA=+—H —A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T FiBT
Listed equity investments: EmRAEE
Hong Kong BE 3,279 3,279
Elsewhere H b 75 872 872
4,151 4,151
Unlisted equity investments FETMRAKRE 4,999 4,999
Unlisted debt securities JEFTEKES 4,320 4,320
13,470 13,470
Market value of listed equity LA B ABEAR 2 ET
investments included above KA EME
at cost 4,141 3,469
Short term investments, at fair value EHRE BAAREE
Group Company
INEE ¥ NN
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2001 2001 2001 2001
—EE-F Z—ZZTT—F —EE-F Z—ZTET—F
+=—B=+—-H =ZA=+—H +=-—BA=+—-—H =ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FH&T FHET
Listed equity investments: EmRAEE
Hong Kong BE 36,562 105,469 — 245
Elsewhere H b5 1,034 — — —
37,596 105,469 — 245
Unlisted debt securities IEEMEBES — 27,264 — —
37,596 132,733 — 245
Market value of listed investments M #% & M 1E 37,596 101,306 — 245
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22. INVENTORIES 22 FE
Group
rEME
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
—EE2-F —ET—F
+=—H=+—8H —A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Raw materials JR 4 ¥ 43,517 58,033
Work in progress &M@ 7,611 12,623
Finished goods 2k 3,637 1,633
Inventories held for resale BIEEE 2 FE 17,361 37,287
72,126 109,576

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during EAHBEBRAIEBEZFEXNLRAR
the period amounted to HK$389,913,000 (year ended 31 389,913,000 L (BZE—TZT—F=H=+
March 2001: HK$318,032,000). —HIEFE : 318,032,000 L) °

The carrying amount of inventories at net realisable value FTRBUERFEINER 2 FEREER
included in the above is HK$4,307,000 (31 March 2001: 4,307,000 T (R ZZEZET—F=H=+—
HK$8,766,000). H : 8,766,000/ T) °

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23. EWRRRERE

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90
days to its trade customers. An aged analysis of trade
and bills receivables, as at the balance sheet date, based
on the payment due date, is as follows:

AEBLKTEHRFFEHI0EWRZEE
B BB BEIMTREER 2 BRER N E
BZREROT

Group
RE
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
—FF-F —TEF
+=-—HA=+—H —A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Current to 30 days ANEAZ 30K 210,247 189,286
31 to 60 days 312 60X 12,491 16,704
61 to 90 days 61E2 90K 9,239 7,901
91 to 120 days 91E120K 5,763 5,547
Over 120 days 120K JA £ 7,626 6,336
245,366 225,774
Less: Provisions for bad and W REZREE
doubtful debts (12,917) (12,092)
232,449 213,682

84
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

24,

25.

26.

In the opinion of the directors, it is more appropriate to
disclose the aged analysis of trade and bills receivables
based on the payment due date. Accordingly, the
comparative aged analysis of trade and bills receivables
is restated.

PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS

The pledged time deposits were used to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

23. EWRRRERE (&)
EERABRAREIHEONMEWRERNLZE
CHEBRBAGE  ALEBREREZEEZL
RYEFELKLEY -

24, CEEBAEHER

EEREMERBIEAEEER 2 RITHA
BMZHEA -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. RERBEELEEHEB
Group Company
KEH ¥ NN
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2001 2001 2001 2001
—BB-F _—TTF —BB-F _—TTF
+=—B=+-8 =Z=A=+—H +=ZB=+-H =A=+—H”
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FH&TT FTHT FH& T
Cash and bank balances 34 &IRTT4 145,588 178,680 6,577 454
Time deposits 7E B R 140,095 101,216 — 1,217
285,683 279,896 6,577 1,671
TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 26. ENRRARERE

An aged analysis of trade and bills payables, as at the
balance sheet date, based on the payment due date, is
as follows:

REMBESMNEE R 2 BABRRZBRE W

0

Group
TEE
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
—EE-F —EET-F
+=—H=+—H —A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(E5))
Current to 30 days BIHERZ= 30K 84,455 89,518
31 to 60 days 31£ 60X 13,810 6,841
61 to 90 days 61E 90K 5,581 3,364
91 to 120 days 91E 120K 520 970
Over 120 days 120K A £ 8,262 1,639
112,628 102,332
Annual Report 2001 #F#g
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26.

27.

28.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 26. ERRRESE (&)
Included in the balance is HK$18,844,000 (31 March LA b & 54 &%EEITFJHE%%*%qJ V1T‘-1i
2001: HK$12,879,000) due to a jointly-controlled entity HEHZEHIA FRIE18,844, 000/&71(*
arising from printing services transactions, which is —F=A= -I— EI 12,879,000/ 7T) °
payable in accordance with the credit terms granted by BRARZEHARARZEERIM -
the jointly-controlled entity.
In the opinion of the directors, it is more appropriate to BETR F%TE/TA HEH BT ENEREER
disclose the aged analysis of trade and bills payables ZERRAGHE  FAUHEMNERREEZL
based on the payment due date. Accordingly, the ?%(%E%“EEU °
comparative aged analysis of trade and bills payables is
restated.
INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. HEHITHEE
Group
rEE
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
—EE2-F —EET-F
+=ZBA=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FAT

Secured bank loans repayable: ZER T3 HFEEEZE 2 BRBRTET

Within one year or on demand —F NN EE R AR 29,206 —

In the second year %:¢ 3,000 —

In the third to fifth years, % FHE (BEEERT)

inclusive 4,250 —
36,456 —

Portion classified as current BREARDAE M

liabilities (29,206) —
Long term portion R HE & 7,250 —

The Group’s bank loans are secured by:

(i)  mortgages over the Group’s land and buildings, with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$155,000,000 (31 March 2001: Nil);

(i) floating charge over certain of the Group’s
machinery with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$6,583,000 (31 March 2001: Nil);
and

(iii) certain of the Group’s pledged time deposits with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$26,206,000 (31
March 2001: Nil).

LONG TERM OTHER PAYABLES

The balance is payable to a joint venture partner of a
jointly-controlled entity and is unsecured, interest-free
and payable on or before 7 December 2005.
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28.

AEEZRITERB AT FAFEER

(i) A% [E 48R M {E 49 3 155,000,0007% 7T
ZIHEEF(CEE-—F=f=+—
B ®)2kiE

(i) 7% EF T 18 48R [ (5 46,583,000/
TL 2 M 22 zg@ﬁﬁp_ E T —F =R
=+—H &)

(i) 7N 5% [F 42 BR [ {8 3% 26,206,000/ T 2 7E
HERZER(CZEE-—F=A=+—
H: &) -

Hfth & HA & 4 1B
BREEN T HARBHATZABLE

B FELSEENR 2BENRER-_FTETR
F+ZATHKZAIERE -



29.

30.

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS 2. REBRBZRE
Group
rEME
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
—E2-F —TE—-F
+=-—B=+-—H —A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Balance at beginning of H ¥/ F A A R
period/year 11,616 —
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE — R B A A — 12,029
Write-back during the period/year Hi/R 4 A # [0 (2,929) —
Payments during the period/year 8§,/ & R 2 1+ (3,092) (851)
Exchange realignment ME G 13 (62)
Balance at end of period/year HR 4R IR s8R 5,608 11,616
This mainly represented provisions for long service NEFZERBRBEBTEEBERAIEVBEREE
payments for eligible employees in accordance with Part BREBELZRARG SEHE - ZBETIU
VB of the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and MBEAEERKBENEIFPEELBENE D
reduced by any part of such payments that would be met SRIE °
out of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes.
DEFERRED TAX 30. iE #E B 1B
Group
rEME
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
—E2-F —TE—F
+=-—B=+-—H —A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Balance at beginning of H ¥/ F A A R
period/year 9,005 —
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE — R B A A — 8,136
Charge/(credit) for the period/year H1/W, & A FIBR,~ (5F A)
— note 12 — MisE12 (1,631) 867
Exchange realignment ME G 6 2
Balance at end of period/year HR 4R IR B R 7,380 9,005
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30. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 30. IEAEMIE (&)

The principal components of the Group’s provision for
deferred tax, and the net deferred tax asset position not
recognised in the financial statements, are as follows:

AEBEELEHARBIEIERR  ERARR
AU BHREERAZBREHRAEEFENOT

Provided Not provided
=F: 4 REE
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2001 2001 2001 2001
—EB-F -TT—F —EB-F _—TT—F
+=A=+—-8 =A=+—H +=ZH=+-8B ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FETT FER FET
Accelerated depreciation R &R Tz
allowances 7,261 7,843 9,609 8,799
Tax losses i & 1A — — (125,780) (97,028)
Others H Aty 119 1,162 (2,904) (2,951)
7,380 9,005 (119,075) (91,180)

No provision has been made for taxes which would arise
on the remittance to Hong Kong of retained profits of
overseas companies as it is not anticipated that these
amounts will be remitted in the near future.

The potential tax benefits attributable to tax losses of
certain subsidiaries have not been recognised as they
are not expected to be utilised in the foreseeable future.

The revaluations of the Group’s land and buildings do not
constitute timing differences and, consequently, the
amount of potential deferred tax thereon has not been
quantified.

The principal components of the Company’s net deferred
tax asset position not recognised in the financial
statements are as follows:

HREHEIIRRZEFa M ERRATE
ERERE AT ESZEFRECELKA
EEZBIEE -

HRETHERARRBERZEEBEERT
MeSTEHIER AR TG ZR - Bt El
It W RR o

EfEAEEZ LW REFATEREE - &
VEAEERBEEER A B -

ARBHARHBRERER ZBELERIAEE
FEZETERMHMT

Not provided

LR

31 December 31 March

2001 2001

—EE-F —EE—F

+=A=+-—H =A=+—8

HK$°000 HK$’000

FER FA&T

Accelerated depreciation allowances mERFrERTEE 30 64
Tax losses B EE (4,163) (3,381)
(4,133) (3,317)

The revaluations of the Company’s land and buildings do
not constitute timing differences and, consequently, the
amount of potential deferred tax thereon has not been
quantified.
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31.

SHARE CAPITAL 31. B+
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
—BEB-F —EET-F
+=—H=+—H —A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Authorised: EFERA
4,708,513,092 ordinary shares 4,708,513,092% T % H (&
of HK$0.10 each 0.10/8 70 2 I i 470,851 470,851
1,291,486,908 5% redeemable  1,291,486,908% & X F1E0.10/5 /T
cumulative convertible 2 5% 2 & 7] {E 1] A 82 418 o %
preference shares of
HK$0.10 each 129,149 129,149
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRBRRKRA :
1,470,345,273 (31 March 1,470,345,2730% (Z T T —4F
2001: 1,338,119,273) =—HA=4+—H :1,338,119,273f%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 BREMBE10E T 2 E B
each 147,035 133,812
Issued and partly paid: EETRHOHERAE
1,159,486,908 (31 March 1,159,486,908/% (Z =T —F
2001: 1,291,486,908) —HA=4+—H : 1,291,486,908%)
5% redeemable cumulative FREEA0B L Z5%RE
convertible preference A] 8 B AT 85 #R E S R
shares of HK$0.10 each 74,068 82,500
221,103 216,312

A summary of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the period is as follows:

UTRARBBRARPA 2 EBHHE :

(a) Ordinary shares (a) HER

Issued and
Number of fully paid
Notes ordinary shares HK$’000
2RITR
BHHE
B = ZEREAR FER
As at 1 April 2001 R-ZEZE—FWNA—AH 1,338,119,273 133,812

Issue of new shares to M Luckman 17 #7 %
Luckman (i) 132,000,000 13,200
Exercise of options 7718 B I (ii) 226,000 23
As at 31 December 2001 R-_ZEE—F+=-F=+—H 1,470,345,273 147,035
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31.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(a) Ordinary shares (continued)

(i)  On 20 June 2001, Luckman paid up the remaining
90% of the cash subscription price of HK$0.6388
per share for 132,000,000 preference shares so as
to enable it to exercise the conversion rights
attached to these fully paid-up preference shares.
The net proceeds received by the Company therefor
amounted to approximately HK$76 million and such
conversion resulted in 132,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company being issued to Luckman and
credited as fully paid. Upon completion of the
conversion, Luckman became interested in
739,396,000 ordinary shares or 50.29% of the
Company’s then enlarged issued ordinary share
capital.

(i)  The subscription rights attaching to 226,000 share
options were exercised at the subscription price of
HK$0.4032 per share, resulting in the issue of
226,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash

31.

A (%)
(a) BER (#)

() —ZTZ—%A-+H "  Luckman X
132,000,000/ & 5t i% & % 0.6388/%
LIRS REESR T 290% @ AEITFEZ
LHRRHTELIATH 2 Bk - AR
7] /A U U BY 2 3R I8 5 58 £ 4976,000,000
BT MAEBRELRERARRM
Luckman % 77132,000,0008¢ A BR 51| &
R LA o SEAH % © Luckman %
5 739,396,0000% L@ A% 2w  1H A
NAEFEIERNERRA Z50.29% °

(i) 226,0001) fE I HEM A 2 BB REIZRBE
B & 040328 T 17 £ 1& ~ H 1T
226,000/ T X EI1E0.10/%8 7T 2 & {5 -
AHNFR A 2 483 € K B 5 91,0008

consideration, before expenses, of HK$91,000. JC °

(b) Preference shares (b) BER
Issued and
Number of partly paid
preference shares 2RITR
BEREE BOHE
HK$’000
FHET
As at 1 April 2001 WZZEZ-FWHA—H 1,291,486,908 82,500
Converted into ordinary shares 7 # AT ER (132,000,000) (8,432)
As at 31 December 2001 RZEE—F+ZHA=14— 1,159,486,908 74,068

During the year ended 31 March 2001, 1,291,486,908
preference shares were issued at a cash subscription
price of HK$0.6388 per share to Luckman and, have
been partly paid up as to 10% of the subscription price,
except for the 132,000,000 preferences shares, which
were fully paid up during the period and converted into
ordinary shares. At 31 December 2001, there were
1,159,486,908 preferences shares in issue, and such
preference shares were partly paid up as to 10% of the
subscription price.

The holders of the preference shares may elect to
advance to the Company all or part of moneys uncalled
or unpaid on any such preference shares. However, the
Company is not permitted to make calls with respect to
amounts unpaid on such partly paid preference shares.
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HE2_ZET—F=ZA=Z+—HLFE -
1,291,486,908% B LR E IR S RBE TR
0.6388/ T3 7T ¥ Luckman - 2S5 E &£ X
B RIEBE10%M A3k - £ 132,000,000
BEEBRENAPEANGERR - WE LB
ABLTElR e —_EE—F+=-_A=+—H B
#%171,159,486,908/% B L % - M2 ZEE LR
BHEM10% 2 REE -

M ATRERAR RN 2 PR
AR EBERA X B BB - AT - &
DAV 35 2 1) R BB A 8 5 R
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31.

32.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(b) Preference shares (continued)

The holders of preference shares are entitled to
fixed cumulative preferential dividends at the rate of
5% per annum provided that the preference shares
have been fully paid up.

The preference shares are convertible into new
ordinary shares of the Company upon being fully
paid up, in the period between 20 July 2000 and 19
July 2002, in the ratio of one new ordinary share for
every preference share. In June 2001, Luckman
converted 132,000,000 preference shares into
ordinary shares upon the relevant preference
shares being paid up.

In addition, the preference shares are redeemable
at any time by their holders for the amount paid up
together with any arrears or accruals of the fixed
cumulative preferential dividend on the preference
shares, subject to the provisions of the Companies
Act of Bermuda.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”), further details of which are set out in the
Report of the Directors on pages 33 to 35 of the Annual
Report.

No cash consideration was received by the Company for
the options granted during the period.

At the beginning of the period, there were 75,185,000
options outstanding under the Scheme, which entitled the
holders to subscribe for shares of the Company at any
time during periods ranging from 1 October 1999 to 21
March 2011. The subscription prices payable upon the
exercise of these options range from HK$0.4256 to
HK$2.6, subject to adjustment.

During the year, the Company granted a total of
21,890,000 share options under the Scheme. The share
options granted entitle the holders to subscribe for shares
of the Company at any time during periods ranging from 2
April 2001 to 23 December 2011. The subscription price
per share payable upon the exercise of these options
was HK$0.3528 to HK$0.584, subject to adjustment.

A total of 226,000 share options were exercised during
the period at an exercise price of HK$0.4032, and
11,543,000 share options with exercise prices ranging
from HK$0.3992 to HK$2.6 were lapsed during the
period.

31.

32.

A (%)
(b) EBER (&)
BERFEAGCDHCEERRR - B

BERERZFXREFENEEREE
SRR B o

R-ZEEEFLA-FTHE_TT_F

t AT BEME BERAEMREKRK
% SRR —HE LAl EBReRA
AR EEKR —FEZF—FA

Luckman £ 811 132,000,000 0% 18 4t A%
2% BEREREREARIBAY
AT o

BESN - HBERERRDEMGXARRT -
BERFEANBRERBRLEZ
BERBEERBEREBOD N 2BE
PR B

BRESS

K BB AR E (T8 - &
ﬁﬁéii&%%i%ﬁz%%ai&% °

ARBRFEARBERDFLBEREZRER

g -
% T &7 B ) B 275 75,185,00017 8 Ak # 1)
RITE - ZEBRERFBEABER LA

NWE+A—HE-_Z——F=ZF_-+—HBH
MR- BERREARAZERG - (TFEILEEE
Hx%ﬂj*fﬁZu %T N FEFH0.425678 L&

ARBARAFEREZFEHAEHAERY
21 890 OOOT‘B%Hx% ° EZ?%HM&%H%A

FRE_TET-FNA-_HBE_ZT——F+
“AZt+=PHHEA BERERBARBZK
e TEHNEERESENZRABENTE

[ 0.3528/%8 7T £0.584/% 7T (7] T A %) o

HRe HKE226000BRESKLRER
040328 T 2 {TIE(ETHE - MBAKAE
11,543,00017 17 £ B 71 F0.39928 7T £2.6/8
TCZ BB R AR ©

Annual Report 2001 #F#g

91



92

32.

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. ERESE (&)
At the balance sheet date, the Company had 85,306,000 REEFE R - KN F 585,306,0001) 75t 2
share options outstanding under the Scheme, with ZHERERKITE ZEBREZITEHAN
exercise periods ranging from 25 September 2000 to 23 F_EREEEFANAZTRAAZZE——F+
December 2011 and exercise prices ranging from ZRARZ+=8 " 7FEENF0.3528F T E
HK$0.3528 to HK$1.35. The exercise in full of the 13587 c hEM T 2 BIREE 2 HITE
remaining share options would, under the present capital B Be8R ARl RNRAERTE
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 4N 8% 17 85,306,000/% & f% H (& 0.10/8 7T 2 %
85,306,000 additional shares of HK$0.10 each for an fn - RINER B < B 2 4 LB 72 65,659,000/8
aggregate consideration, before expenses, of JC °
approximately HK$65,659,000.
RESERVES 33. f#1E
Land and
Exchange building
Share Contributed Capital fluctuation revaluation Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ER tTHREgF
B % E BABE B EE HEREE EfhRE RitEE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FAT FHBT FHT FHT FHT
Group KEH
At 1 April 2000 —ETTFMA—H 329,420 9,899 13,892 68 — (16,228) 337,051
Exchange realignment & H % — — — (4,035) — — (4,035)
Issue of shares BT 445,209 — — — — — 445,209
Share issue expenses BITRMHAX (13,024) — — — — — (13,024)
Write-back on disposal of & — [ & 2 7]
a subsidiary BF 8 o) — — 5,214 — — — 5,214
Goodwill on acquisition of U B8 — i £t [F 2 I
a jointly-controlled entity A B E 4 2 & — — (150,921) — — — (150,921)
Capital reserve on WEEH B QA2
acquisition of BARGEE
subsidiaries — — 212,827 — — — 212,827
Impairment of goodwill BETREHEZ
remaining eliminated AmEZEE
against capital reserve (Mf3E16)
(note 16) — — 150,921 — — — 150,921
Net loss for the year FREBEFHE
(as restated) (E5) — — — — — (245,231) (245,231)
At 31 March 2001 RZTE—F
—A=+—8H 761,605 9,899 231,933 (3,967) — (261,459) 738,011
At 1 April 2001 —TT-#MA-R
As previously reported 17 Bl E2 4R 761,605 9,899 81,012 (3,967) — (110,538) 738,011
Prior year adjustments: FFEAE
SSAP 30 — SR EBER
Impairment of goodwill £305% —
remaining eliminated BEIEAXR
against capital EEPHIHEZ
reserve (note 16) B ZRE
(ff5E16) — — 150,921 — — (150,921) —
As restated =7 761,605 9,899 231,933 (3,967) — (261,459) 738,011
Exchange realignment [ X, 3 & — — — (3,224) — — (3,224)
Issue of shares BTG 71,190 — — — — — 71,190
Share issue expenses BHITRM X (47) — — — — — (47)
Surplus on revaluation E A% — — — — 2,569 — 2,569
Net loss for the period HRMEEEE — — — — — (131,446) (131,446)
As 31 December 2001 —EE—F
+=A=+—8 832,748 9,899 231,933 (7,191) 2,569 (392,905) 677,053
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33. RESERVES (continued) 33. & (&)
Land and
Exchange building
Share Contributed Capital fluctuation revaluation Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ER THRETF
B’ 17 %8 BABE BEXRFEE REREE BEMHRHE Rt &8 At
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FH&ET FET FHET F&T F&T FET
Group (continued) rEE (&)
Reserves retained by: HUTARREZ
TR
Company and AR R EKE
subsidiaries ] 832,748 9,899 231,933 (1,228) 2,569 (367,688) 708,233
Jointly-controlled F A2 G A A
entities — — — (6,094) — (20,239) (26,333)
Associates iR/ — — — 131 — (4,978) (4,847)
At 31 December 2001 HRZ-TZT—4F
+-A=+—HB 832,748 9,899 231,933 (7,191) 2,569 (392,905) 677,053
Company and AR R EKE
subsidiaries N 761,605 9,899 231,933 324 — (248,717) 755,044
Jointly-controlled HRIE 2 R
entities — — — (4,422) — (4,054) (8,476)
Associates iR/ — — — 131 — (8,688) (8,557)
At 31 March 2001 RZZEZE—F
=ZA=+—*H 761,605 9,899 231,933 (3,967) — (261,459) 738,011
Certain amount of negative goodwill arising on the ETHRAREBHREARMEAANESES
acquisition of subsidiaries remains credited to the capital BETANERFHEAN  FERERARNTBER
reserve, as explained in note 16 to the financial KW FE168 ©
statements.
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
B4 % E BB BitE#E a5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL FEL FEL FAT
Company VNN
At 1 April 2000 W-ZEEZEMA—H 329,420 104,950 (102,579) 331,791
Issue of shares BIIRG 445,209 — — 445,209
Share issue expenses BRI FAX (13,024) — — (13,024)
Loss for the year FABE — — (87,614) (87,614)
At 31 March 2001 RZZEE-F=RA=+—H
and 1 April 2001 k—ZTE-FNA—H 761,605 104,950 (190,193) 676,362
Issue of shares EITRRA 71,190 — — 71,190
Share issue expenses EITRHEX (47) — - (47)
Loss for the period HAEE — — (206,166) (206,166)
At 31 December 2001 WZZTZ—F+-_A=+—H 832,748 104,950 (396,359) 541,339
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33.

RESERVES (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of shares issued by
Perfect Treasure Holdings (BVI) Limited in exchange for
the aggregate nominal value of the issued share capital
of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation in 1996, prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the same reorganisation, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), the Company may make
distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus
under certain circumstances.
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 3. KEBEERERKMET

STATEMENT
(a) Reconciliation of loss from operating activities (a) REERFEAKEERE2HEREF
to net cash outflow from operating activities HoHERR
Period from
1 April 2001 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
H-ZEZE—fF
A—BZE HE
—E2-F —EET—F
+=-—B=+-—H —A=+—~H
IHH IEFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FET
(Restated)
(&E3)
Loss from operating activities ¥ & % 75 &5 18 (123,464) (224,752)
Interest income FLE WA (8,304) (32,903)
Dividend income from an KE—EIILETREZ
unlisted investment I B WA (2,332) (225)
Dividend income from listed KB FH®RE 2
investments B WA (42) (352)
Provisions for bad and RIBZRBE
doubtful debts 591 540
Loss on changes in fair RHREARBEES
values of short term E 1B F 5
investments, net 15,598 35,226
Gain on disposal of short HEEHRE N EFEE
term investments, net (989) (4,240)
Revaluation deficit on land 1 ith }2 18 5 &= i &5 4t
and buildings 30,994 1,726
Provision against an N—EREEEHEREREZ
investment in an MELRRZIRERE
unconsolidated subsidiary — 18,000
Loss on disposal of a HE—ENERARZEE
subsidiary — 4,469
Provision against an amount & i — & 2k B 1% & 2 7] 5018
due from a jointly- 4]
controlled entity 11,572 1,360
Impairment of interests in R E QA 2w 2R E
associates 174 701
Impairment of other HiigERE
investments 885 —
Write-back of provision for & [B] & 8 iR 7% & B 1%
long service payments (2,929) —
Impairment of goodwill FERE — 150,921
Decrease in amounts due  J&{J k@] 2 & 2 & 50 IEF 4
to jointly-controlled entities (8,361) —
Provision for loss on HEBRTEEERBERB
disposal of fixed assets — 10,657
Provision for properties FIEHEWERE
held for sale 5,208 —
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STATEMENT (continued)

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 34.

(a) Reconciliation of loss from operating activities (a) REERFEEKEERCHESREF
to net cash outflow from operating activities B8Rk (&)
(continued)
Period from
1 April 2001 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
H-ZEZE—F
A—BZ HE
—EE2-F —EET—F
+=—HA=+—H —A=+—H
IHH IEFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FET
(Restated)
(&E7)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of /& — & QA AlE 8B
an associate (Yezx) (486) 651
Depreciation e 33,015 9,413
Goodwill amortisation ik ¥ 1,463 —
Loss on disposal of fixed HEBRTEEBIE
assets 1,816 4,587
Decrease in inventories FER L 37,484 1,852
Decrease in properties held # {EH & ¥ %/ 4
for sale 5,426 8,984
Decrease in trade and bills JEWBER R ZH - FEHE -
receivables, prepayments, 7] & [ H h fE W SRIER 4 2
deposits and other
receivables 6,473 9,710
Increase in amount due JE W — I £ R 3% 1 2 &)
from a jointly-controlled TRIBIE AN
entity (2,638) (807)
Decrease in amount due to  J& < — [ B & A A] FIE R 4
an associate (13) —
Decrease in trade and bills  FE R L R 1& ~ EthES
payables, other payables A N FEET SRR
and accruals (9,074) (55,789)
Decrease in provision for &R & B R
long service payments (3,092) (351)
Effect of foreign exchange JEXR&Z#F £
rate changes (1,254) (3,817)
Net cash outflow from KB R RHIFRE
operating activities (12,279) (64,439)
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (continued)

34.

mEe

REREBRMWE (&)

(b) Analysis of changes of financing during the (b) BHAR " FRAZHESB DN
period/year
Issued capital
(including
share Minority
premium) Bank loan interests
2RITRAE
(BERGEE) RITER LPEBRRER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
Balance at 1 April 2000 RZEETF
mA—HZ#&& 379,279 4,858 354
Exchange realignment ME 5, o B — — 1
Proceeds from issue of BITLRRFTIS IR
ordinary shares 529,162 — —
Proceeds from issue of BITERERFTISHIA
preference shares 82,500 — —
Share issue expenses BATIR D B 2 (13,024) — —
Repayment during the year “F W& X — (4,858) —
Acquisition of subsidiaries B B A A — — 255,143
Share of loss for the year  E/EF A KB — — (5,659)
Share of reserves JE i 15 18 — — (1,824)
Balance at 31 March 2001 HR_-_ZTZ—F
and 1 April 2001 —A=+—8HkK 977,917 — 248,015
—TE—F
mA—AZ&&
New bank loan FEIRITER — 38,206 —
Issue of shares BT D 75,981 — —
Share issue expenses BTN B 2 (47) — —
Repayment during the period Hi R & 7% — (1,750) —
Acquisition of a subsidiary U & — B A A — — 183
Share of loss for the period &5 Hi A 518 — — (22,521)
Share of revaluation reserve & 15 {1 — — 880
Share of exchange reserve &1 E 5 [ # — — (766)
Balance at 31 December —EE-F+=H
2001 =t—BHZ&ER 1,053,851 36,456 225,791
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued)

(c)

FERETRERME (&)

Acquisition of subsidiaries W EE BB A Tl
Period from
1 April 2001 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
H=ZZ—fF
H —H 2 EjZi
—E8—F —EB—F
+=ZB=+—H —A=+—H
1R EFE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAT
Net assets acquired: BB & E
Fixed assets B E B E 307 532,709
Interests in jointly- NERES AT 2R
controlled entities — 158,118
Interests in associates RN A - X — 10,990
Long term investments EHKE — 13,470
Other investments HMIEE — 2,353
Properties held for sale BIEREWE — 43,583
Inventories FE 34 67,191
Trade and bills PR R = 8 ﬁ
receivables, e REMEWZIE
prepayments, deposits
and other receivables 387 256,995
Pledged time deposits 2EETHER — 11,855
Cash and bank balances WE LIBITHE 424 173,146
Trade and bills payables, TEERE 3 &mff HAib
other payables and FENNIE R FEEt IR
accruals (754) (222,931)
Tax payable JE AT TR 30 — (80,724)
Provision for long service EHRG & BE
payments _ (12,029)
Deferred tax i RE 75 18 — (8,136)
Minority interests DERE RS (183) (255,143)
215 741,447
Capital reserve arising from a2 BANEE
acquisition — (212,827)
Goodwill on acquisition WHEREL 2R 5,952 —
6,167 528,620
Satisfied by: SARDAENE
Cash R& 2,157 528,620
Consideration included BREEHEMEMNZE R
under other payables EATERAZARE
and accruals 4,010 —
6,167 528,620
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 34.

STATEMENT (continued)

(c)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) (c)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash

W E LR ()

RERERERKTE (&)

WENBARZReMASSEEERZ

equivalents in respect of the acquisition of EHSEESNAT
subsidiaries is as follows:
Period from
1 April 2001 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
H-ZEE—F
A—B=% HE
—EBE-F T —F
+=ZB=+—H —A=+—H
1R EFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash consideration HeRE (2,157) (528,620)
Cash and bank balances EWE RS NIRTTES
acquired 424 173,146
(1,733) (355,474)

The subsidiaries acquired during the period made
no significant contribution to the Group in respect of
the cash flows, turnover and consolidated loss after
tax and before minority interests for the period.

The subsidiaries acquired in the prior year
contributed HK$204,142,000 to the Group’s
turnover, HK$18,325,000 to the Group’s loss after
tax and before minority interests, and HK$5,413,000
to the Group’s net cash inflow from operating
activities; received HK$5,874,000 in respect of the
net returns on investments and servicing of finance;
paid HK$5,330,000 in respect of tax; and utilised
HK$11,250,000 for investing activities for the year
ended 31 March 2001.

HAKBZHBRARHAEERAN ZRER
B 2XRBELBERERERF D EREFEEEA
ZEEEER UESTREXER -

TFERBZHBRARARNEBEE —_TF
—F = =+—HItFEHK204,142,000/8
L EERE  BAEBEZBRBEERT O
RS B8 46 25 BT /S 48 %5 38 18,325,00008 7T ~ A&
EEBIRSRAFEERS,413,000%8 7T « W
H15,874,0008 T2 BRI LBMEER - X
15,330,000/ T 1B A K& B EB) =
11,250,000/ 7T °
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 34.

100

STATEMENT (continued)

(d)

Summary of effects of disposal and

reclassification of a subsidiary

FERERERKTE (&)

HE-—RMNBARYSEER I B2
EM=E

(d)

Year ended
31 March
2001
BE-ZZ—F
=A=+-—H
IEFE
HK$’000
FAT
Net assets disposed of: EHEFEE
Fixed assets EBE 87
Inventories 58 8,136
Trade and bills receivables, JEUWBEX R EE « A FKIE -
prepayments, deposits Rl I E b U FRIE
and other receivables 13,844
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTHE & 1,783
Bank overdrafts RITIEX (203)
Trade and bills payables, ERERRER - HMER
other payables and FRIB K FEET IR
accruals (17,867)
Net assets disposed of: BEHEFEE 5,780
Goodwill realised on disposal H & B fi# (4 7 & 5,214
Reclassification to interests  # Z A 5] AW & A A
in associates, previously ZHEZEINE
accounted for as a RN R
subsidiary (1,474)
Loss on disposal HEEE (4,469)
5,051
Satisfied by: SRHAR
Cash consideration ReRE 5,051
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(d)

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 4. ZRERERERME (&)
STATEMENT (continued)
Summary of effects of disposal and (d HE-RBHBLATRZEEHME (&)
reclassification of a subsidiary (continued)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash HE—FMBRAR RERREEHEE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a BZmAFBEIMWT -
subsidiary is as follows:
Year ended
31 March
2001
BE-Z2Z—F
=A=+-—H
LtFE
HK$'000
FAET
Cash consideration ReRE 5,051
Cash and bank balances EHERS RIRITEH
disposed of (1,783)
Bank overdrafts disposed of T H &R 176 203
3,471
The subsidiary disposed of in the prior year made FTEEEREC MBRARATEARNESEHE
no significant contribution to the Group in respect of ZEE—F=-A=F+—RHUEFEZRESR
the cash flows, turnover and consolidated loss after 2 BEBUNBBREBRT LSRR ER
tax and before minority interests during the year A2 REBEBREMERER °
ended 31 March 2001.
35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. ZAREE

(a)

(b)

At 31 December 2001, the Company had
outstanding corporate guarantees of approximately
HK$31,450,000 (31 March 2001: HK$123,450,000)
issued in favour of banks to secure general banking
facilities granted to its subsidiaries. These
subsidiaries had not utilised any of the facilities as
at 31 December 2001 (31 March 2001: Nil).

A 74.5% owned subsidiary of the Group has given
several guarantees in favour of a bank to secure
50% of the credit facilities granted to, and utilised
by, a jointly-controlled entity. As at 31 December
2001, the Group’s proportionate share of such
utilised credit facilities was approximately
HK$49,408,400 (31 March 2001: HK$52,642,000).

(@ R-ZZEZ—F+_-_A=+—H £2Q7F
BEMBARERZ —RIBITHEBER
ZRIRITEH 2 A FIEIR 431,450,000
Br(ZE22—F=ZA=+—8":
123,450,000/87T) ° thEHMEB AT
TE-—F+ A=+ HBHABHT
MR ERE(CEE—F=_A=1+—
H &) o

(by —EAREEEBT745% 2B ARE IR
—MRITEEE TER  (EA—HBHR
EHARERBECHBAZEEBREZ
50%#F - R—_ZETE—F+-_A=+—
B AEBEZRLFIELEZEEHREEER
% P %8 2 49,408,400 T (— EE —4F
= A=+—H : 52,642,000 T) °
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

102

(c)

(d)

The Group has an interest in a joint venture which,
until December 1996, owned a property which was
financed in part by a loan secured by a mortgage on
the property. Each joint venturer is committed to the
repayment of its proportionate share of the liability
under the mortgage and this is reflected in a several
guarantee given by the venturers to the mortgagee.
During 1996, the property was sold by the
mortgagee and the Group has written off its
investment in the joint venture and provided for its
proportionate share of the mortgage liability under
the guarantee. There is a contingent liability in
respect of the remaining excess mortgage liability of
approximately HK$110 million as at 31 December
2001, in the event that the Group’s obligations are
determined to be joint and several, and the other
venturers fail to honour their attributable portions.
The Group has obtained legal advice which
confirmed that such a claim, whilst possible, is
unlikely to succeed.

Claims have been made against certain subsidiaries
for damages in respect of alleged defamation.
Based on legal opinion, the directors consider that
the likelihood of the Group suffering any material
loss in respect of these claims is remote and,
accordingly, no provision has been made in the
financial statements.

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases some land and buildings (note 15
to the financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to six years. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.
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36.

(c)

(d)

mE

(a)
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- AIAEEE_TTE-—F+_-_A=
T—BRTZRBEHKS 2D
110,000,000/ T Z kA B & - NEH
ERBZERRER  MEZEHRSHE
e A BB AR -
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

As lessor (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total
future minimum lease rental receivables under non-

36. KEMHENZH (&)
(a) ERHBAA (E)

REEH - AEBERE NIEmZ AR
A EHO R 2 RRRERE K

cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling BES
due as follows:
Group
KE
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
—E2-F —ET-F
+=—H=+—H —A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Within one year —F R 4,052 5,376
In the second to fifth years, £ _ZFAF (BIEEEMF)
inclusive 4,740 6,588
After five years hF1& — 842
8,792 12,806
As lessee (b) EAREBEA

The Group leases certain of its office properties and
printing equipment under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for these properties and
printing equipment are negotiated for terms ranging
from two to five years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-

AEERBEEEHOLHBESTHA
EWMELHARRE - KEBIOERED
Rl HORM —_E0%F -

REEH  AEERE NIIFHZ AR
ML L RO RN 2 RRKERENK

cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: RES
Group
rEH
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
—E2-F —ET—F
+=-—B=+-—H —A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHE T FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Within one year —F R 15,854 10,745
In the second to fifth years, £ _ZF A F (BIEEEMF)
inclusive 15,706 12,136
31,560 22,881
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37. COMMITMENTS

(a)

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 36. KREBEHOZH (&)
(b) As lessee (continued) (b) EREBA (B)
SSAP 14 (Revised), which was adopted during the RAFERA 2 G EBEAF 1458
period, requires lessors under operating leases to (D RELEHO 2 HHEAAR
disclose the total future minimum operating lease BREBEAA LSO EE 2 KRR
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases, SESEHAOTIBERE - 0 XXM
as detailed in note (a) above. This disclosure was (a )Ffr oo 2B S TR 2 TH R R AR
not previously required. SSAP 14 (Revised) also E o BETEBHERE 1458 (KIEET) I5
requires lessees under operating leases to disclose REABABBRBEREBL %fﬂ 29 e
the total future minimum operating lease payments, Z*X?ﬁi‘“ EHRARIBELETE - M
rather than only the payments to be made during MERHTERIFEERFE A fi H PN
the next year as was previously required. Koo B - 70 £ SO RE (b) BT d A R A
Accordingly, the prior year comparative amounts for NREFKERAOZHEBRBTFELSE
operating leases as lessee in note (b) above, have Ao AMEEARFEZ2HAA 5 -
been restated to accord with the current year’s
presentation.
37. A&iE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed FTLXW FE36(b) K ETHEAEIN - A&
in note 36(b) above, the Group had the following EREEBBNAT 2B ARHE :
commitments at the balance sheet date:
Capital commitments (a) BAREIE
Group
rEME
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
—EE2-F —TE—-F
+=-—B=+-—H —A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Capital commitments: BAREIE
Contracted for EEI4 17,578 31,832
Authorised, but not EHEBKRETH
contracted for 8,421 —
25,999 31,832
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37. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

37. &g (&)

Capital commitments (continued) (a) BAXREE (&)
In addition, the Group’s shares of jointly-controlled BEoN - AEEE EXREBE 2 HFZE
entities’ own capital commitments which are not FlRBIAE 2 BEARAER EG AT
included in the above, were as follows: 7
Group
rEH
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
—E2-F —ET—F
+=-—B=+-—H —A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Contracted, but no BRI RBEE
provided for 1,915 —
Authorised, but not EHEBERETA
contracted for —_ —
1,915 —
Forward foreign exchange  (b) = EHISNE A 4
contracts 4,365 16,528
At the balance sheet date, the Company had no RAARREE RN |AEMREREAE(Z
material commitments (31 March 2001: Nil). TE—-F=-A=+—H:#&) -

38. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a)

(b)

On 9 January 2002, the Group entered into a joint
venture agreement to invest approximately HK$9.9
million (RMB10.5 million) for a 70% equity interests
in Beijing Jing Hua Human Capital Management
Company Limited. The joint venture is registered in
Zhong Guan Cun, Beijing, the PRC and its principal
business is the provision of on-line education and
corporate training programs.

On 21 January 2002, the Group entered into a
business purchase agreement with an independent
third party to purchase certain business assets,
including data library, copyright, trademark, domain
name and certain equipment of “Teens” magazine at
a cash consideration of approximately HK$7 million.
The said acquisition gave rise to intangible assets
of approximately HK$6 million, which will be
capitalised and amortised over a period of not more
than 20 years on the straight-line basis.

38. FERREE

(a)

2T -_F—AhB - A&EEFNY—TE
AREMEDR  RILRCESERER
R 2 A170% 2 f% 1 )% & #79,900,000/%5 7T
(AR#10,500,0007T) ° ZA & %A
PR RPN EMRY TEEKA
REMEHE MO EEIIRS -

—EE-F-A=+—H AEH#HEH-—
MBS E=RRIUEE X E - AR
% {8 #477,000,000/8 T BE A& T ¥ 5
BE > BiE[Teens| b2 BIEE - R
R BBARETERME - ALK
8% 3 3 1 IR 496,000,000/8 T 2 B A
B eBBENME  WAEGEUTE
B FE
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38. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

On 21 January 2002, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to purchase certain business assets,
including data library, copyright, trademark and
domain name of “East Touch” magazine at a cash
consideration of HK$16.3 million. The said
acquisition gave rise to intangible assets of
HK$16.3 million, which will be capitalised and
amortised over a period of not more than 20 years
on the straight-line basis.

On 25 January 2002, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of its entire interests in Roman
Enterprises Holdings Limited and Super Grand
Holdings Limited, which together hold the Group’s
entire interests in South China Printing Company
(1988) Limited, Noble World Printing Company
Limited, Roman Financial Press Limited, Valiant
Packaging (Holdings) Limited and their
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Disposal
Assets”), for a consideration of HK$428 million,
subject to adjustments. The Disposal Assets were
principally engaged in the provision of commercial
printing and financial printing services in Hong
Kong and overseas. Details of the revenue and
results of the Disposal Assets for the current period
are included in note 5(c) to these financial
statements under the heading “Commercial
Printing”.

The transaction was completed on 19 April 2002
and the Disposal Assets ceased to be the
subsidiaries of the Group for accounting purposes
with effect from 20 April 2002. As the disposal was
completed reasonably close to the date on which
these financial statements were approved by the
directors of the Company, the gain on this
transaction cannot be reliably estimated at the date
of approval of these financial statements.

Details of the transaction are also set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 25 January 2002
and the Company’s circular to shareholders dated
8 February 2002.
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38.

FERRSEE (&)

(c)

(d)

—EE-F—-A=+—H AEH#HE-—
UBYE=ZAFIVEE RS UWEER
& 4916,300,0008 T A B TEKE
E ' B [ETouch) Z 8B E « g -
MRS e W E SR B
16,300,000 T2 B EE @ 2 BL
BEAR  WABGEATBB - +F&
8 ©

—EE_F-AZ+hHB AEEE—
UBLE=FFILEEHZE  NERE
428,000,000/ 7T (A T F %) HE AR &
E /£ Roman Enterprises Holdings
Limited 1 Super Grand Holdings
Limited 2 2 ## % - ZME R A& K
FARNEERNEENR (—ANJ)BR
~NAE - EMERIAR AR %X
[ & BR A & - Valiant Packaging
(Holdings) Limited &It % Q& 2B
NA(BEITHEEE]) 2280 #s - b
EEEFZHEFTENEIMEHEBEDR
NEAENRI RS - HEEEEAHRZ
WO A Ko 38 48 R 1B B 00 B 75 R 3R BT RE 5(c)
[ERERI—IEA -

RERXRSGNR_ZET_FHA+HIHERE
oGt REL  HEEEH_TZT
“FHAtTHETBBERAEE 2
BAR - ANRERHZ K AR
BORARBESFHEREYBRRZ
B AtRER S Wt RER L F
KRB E 2 B SEfhE -

RERGHBENRARA _TT _F—
AZ+HBZRM  UAEARRR-F
T-F-_A\BRARREL ZBHA ©



39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had

39.

BEALXRS

PRt S MR 2 R 5 BRI
BREBATMEBEANLI L NI ZEAR

the following material transactions with related parties Z ¢
during the period:
Group
&
Period ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2001 2001
BE-Z2Z—F BT —F
+=-—B=+-—H —A=+—~H
IHH HFE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FEx FET
Rental income received from PR N
associates WA S B A (i) 122 205
News services fee income e — R HEREZES R A
received from a jointly- 2 B W AR 7
controlled entity BAKA (i) 6,000 1,333
Printing services charges paid BT R ERT — A A
and payable to a jointly- 2k NG =1
controlled entity Ak 7% & (iii) 52,578 9,669
Reimbursement of expenses MAR A Z &EER
paid on behalf of the Company A&z —HE#E R A
to an affiliate of the Company’s  {EE KA Q&+
ultimate holding company 2 X (iv) 621 617
Management fee income ke —EBEREZ
received from an associate 2REEBEKA — 200
Sales of photographic products 1] — B & QN F 44 &
to an associate % e M E m — 471
Acquisition of fixed assets from B ARNRQ & 2 &KL
an affiliate of the Company’s NEI s )3 =R/NG
ultimate holding company W EE A& E — 500
Acquisition of a subsidiary from B AR 7 2 & &R
an affiliate of the Company’s AAlZ—HBBAR
ultimate holding company Wi —REWE AR — 624
Notes: B 5

(i) The rental income was determined between parties with reference

to the prevailing market price.

(i)

The news services fee was charged on an annual fixed amount

basis pursuant to the news services agreement.

(iii)

pursuant to the printing agreement.

(iv)

The printing service was charged on a cost plus mark-up basis

The reimbursement of expenses was charged at cost.

Details of the Group’s balances with jointly-controlled
entities and associates as at the balance sheet date are
disclosed in notes 19 and 20 to the financial statements.

(i) HEBRABAEBETSERITMELEE °

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

MERGERBREFABRBHBASFE

HUWE -

EIV IRl AR 75 322 ) 7 165 7 W BR PR A& R )

BEEZAXBKRAKE -

AEERAFZEG AR LREERARNEEHR

Z KR

A

i
=3

<
==
E]

R RERM FE19 2 20 55 -
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. B RABHE

ARARETEMBRARAN-_ZET—F+_-_A=
T—HAZHFRWAT :

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2001 were as follows:

108

Nominal
Place of value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued share/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital the Company activities
EE L Do VA ERITROEE" DB ML RAE
MEARERE BEREE R EMER Bat TEXH
Direct Indirect
B =
Artland International Hong Kong HK$1,000 70 — Investment
Limited B ordinary shares holding
BEERABRAF 1,000/ 7T REZER
38 X
RO EERSR R People’s RMB3,000,000 — 100  Software
BRAEM Republic registered development
of China capital BB
R ARARE A R #3,000,0007T
A& A
Beijing Meitian Yingfu People’s US$1,200,000 55 —  Sale of
Network Co., Ltd.* Republic registered photographic
of China capital products
IEREREZFEHK REARKME 1,200,0003 7T TaRMEE
BR AR EERIIE= N
Excellent Gain British Virgin US$1 — 100 Dormant
Investment Limited Islands/ ordinary share EmE
Hong Kong 17T
RBREES/ Rl
5%
Flash Bright Development Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 — 100  Distribution of
Limited B ordinary shares photographic
B R AR A A 5,000,000/% 7T products
gl M D
Global China Broad Band Hong Kong HK$1,000 — 100 Investment
Network Company B ordinary shares holding
Limited 1,000/ 7T BREZEK
i X
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. B AR FHE (£)

Nominal
Place of value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued share/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital the Company activities
M ERTROEE" KD B AL RA
MEARERE BEREE R HMER Bat FTEXHK
Direct Indirect
B =
Global China Convergence British Virgin US$1 100 — Investment
Software Limited Islands/ ordinary share holding
(formerly known as Hi 7 Hong Kong 1ZETTE AR KEER
International Concept RBRELHE &BF
Limited)
Global China Corporate Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100 —  Provision
Finance Limited B ordinary shares of corporate
wEMBERERRAR 5,000,0007% 7T finance
Rl advisory
services
1 f B 75 B
Bk 7%
Global China Infohub British Virgin US$1 — 100 Investment
Limited (formerly Islands/ ordinary share holding
known as A Cosmos Hong Kong 1ZEZ T L ER WEER
Glory Limited) RBREIZHE/
s
Global China Information British Virgin US$1 — 100 Investment
Services Limited Islands/ ordinary share holding
Hong Kong 1ETEBER ®E R
RBREES/
s
Global China Information British Virgin US$1 — 100 Investment
Technology (Beijing) Islands/ ordinary share holding
Limited Hong Kong 1Zn AR WEER
RBREES/
s
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

40. B A BIF1E (&)

Nominal
Place of value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued share/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital the Company activities
M, ERITROEE DB EMLRA
MEARERE BERRE R EMER Bat TEXK
Direct Indirect
B =
Global China Management Hong Kong HK$20 100 —  Provision of
Services Limited B ordinary shares management
2078 7T & ik services to
Group
companies
mEERF
RHEEERE
Global China Marketing Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 — 100 Distribution
Limited B ordinary shares of watches
wERBIREAERAA 10,000,000/% 7T 2 iHF ik
I
Global China Media British Virgin US$1 100 — Investment
Technology Limited Islands/Hong Kong ordinary share holding
RBREES/ 1ETEBER REZER
5%
Global China Multimedia British Virgin US$1 100 — Investment
Limited Islands/Hong Kong ordinary share holding
RBREES/ 1ETEBR REZER
e
Global China Trade Hong Kong HK$1,000 — 100 Dormant
Development Limited B ordinary shares EmET
wEBSHBERAEMR A HK$50,000,000
non-voting
deferred shares
1,000/ 7T & i@ Ak
50,000,0007% 7T
BRER
iR FE AR 17
Global China Training British Virgin US$1 — 100 Investment
Service and Islands/Hong Kong ordinary share holding
Technology Limited EBEAESE S 1ZTERR "B
(formerly known BB
as A& Jubilee Way
Limited)
Golden Glory Technology British Virgin US$1 100 — Investment
Limited Islands/Hong Kong ordinary share holding
KBERES 1ETEBR REER
5%
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

40. B R EIFH1E (&)

Nominal
Place of value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued share/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital the Company activities
M ERTROEE" KD B AL RA
MEARERE BEREE R HMER Bat FTEXHK
Direct Indirect
B =
Grandyear Inc. Western Samoa/ US$1 — 100 Dormant
Hong Kong ordinary share EmE
HERBERLDA FHEED, B 1ETEBR
Palun Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100 Dormant
BB ZERRA A B ordinary shares o 2
10,0007 7T % i Ak
Perfect Treasure British Virgin US$1,000 100 — Investment
Holdings (BVI) Limited Islands/Hong Kong  ordinary shares holding
RBRXES/ 1,000 7T & i ik RE R
e
Perfect Treasure Hong Kong HK$100,000 — 100  Securities
Investment Limited B ordinary shares trading and
BEZRBERRAA 100,000 JT investing
gl BHREELRE
Topgain Trading Limited British Virgin US$1 100 —  Group treasury
Islands/Hong Kong ordinary share CEIS
KBERES/ 1ETEBR
e
Bindaree Trading Limited British Virgin HK$8 — 74.5  Property holding
Islands/Hong Kong  ordinary shares MERE
KBERES/ 88 T & m Ak
e
Evergreen Gardens Canada Cs$100 — 74.5  Property
Project Inc. mEx ordinary shares investment
1000 7T & 38 A% MERE
Hong Kong iMail Hong Kong HK$3,435,000 — 74.5 Newspaper
Newspapers Limited B ordinary shares publishing
3,435,000/% 7T and proper
Rl holding
BREHTRYE
A
King Yip (Dongguan) People’s Republic HK$64,550,880 — 74.5  Printing
Printing and Packaging of China registered N Jil
Factory Limited ## R AR capital
iR (R5) ENR B 5 MR 64,550,880% 7T,
B IR A B A E A
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

40. B A BIF1E (&)

Nominal
Place of value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued share/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital the Company activities
EmE ERTROEE DA EMLRA
MEARER BEREE R EMER Bat TEXH
Direct Indirect
H#E 4
Mapleleaf Holdings Cayman lIslands/ US$1 — 74.5 Investment
Limited Hong Kong ordinary share holding
MERS &F Us$2 BREER
redeemable
preference shares
1ETEBR
PEERIEIE- il
Noble World Printing Hong Kong HK$300,000 — 74.5  Printing
Company Limited B ordinary shares E Jil
S ERIB R A F 300,000/% JT & 3@ A%
Roman Enterprises British Virgin HK$2,000 — 74.5 Investment
Holdings Limited Islands/Hong Kong ordinary shares holding
HEELRE/ 2,0007% 7T REER
FE Bl
Roman Financial Press Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 — 74.5 Financial
Limited BE ordinary shares printing and
& A EN Rl B PR A ) 1,000,000 JT advertising
=il agency
services
B & ED R f2
& & IR AR5
Roman Property The Republic of HK$1 — 74.5  Property holding
Management Limited Liberia/ ordinary share MERER
Hong Kong BT E R
Fltb B 26 A FE
BB
Rosario Gardens Inc. Canada Cs$100 — 74.5  Property
mEx ordinary shares investment
1000 7T & 8 A% MERE
Sing Tao (Canada) Limited Canada C$1 — 74.5 Investment
mEx ordinary share holding and
C$5,500,000 property
holding
preference shares WEERKR K
17T & R MERER
5,500,0001 7T
85k
Sing Tao Finance Hong Kong HK$2 — 74.5 Financing
Limited B ordinary shares intermediary
2B T E B SN
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

40. B R EIFH1E (&)

Nominal
Place of value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued share/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital the Company activities
M ERITROEE KD B AL RA
MEARERE BEREE R HMER Bat FTEXHK
Direct Indirect
B =
Sing Tao Holdings (BVI) British Virgin US$1 — 74.5 Investment
Limited Islands/Hong Kong ordinary share holding
REBRAES BB 1ETEBR RE R
Sing Tao Holdings Bermuda HK$104,904,812 — 74.5 Investment
Limited * BRE ordinary shares holding
104,904,812/ 7T REZEK
gl
Sing Tao Limited Hong Kong HK$77,650,000 — 74.5 Newspaper
EBRRRAA B ordinary shares publishing
77,650,000/% 7T and property
Rl holding
REHTR
MERE
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$100,000 — 74.5 Newspaper
Los Angeles Ltd. of America ordinary shares publishing
EE 100,000 7T & 3 i WME AT
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$1,750,000 — 74.5 Newspaper
New York Ltd. of America ordinary shares publishing
ES 1,750,000 7T WEHT
gl
Sing Tao Newspapers Australia A$250,000 — 74.5 Newspaper
Pty. Limited BN ordinary shares publishing
250,000/% 7T WEHT
gl
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$250,000 — 74.5 Newspaper
San Francisco Ltd. of America ordinary shares publishing
e 250,000 7T & 3@ A% wEET
Sing Tao (U.K.) United Kingdom £100 — 74.5 Newspaper
Limited S ordinary shares publishing
1003 % & 3@ A% REET
South China Binding Hong Kong/ HK$2 — 74.5 Book binding
Limited People’s Republic ordinary shares B
of China 2T E B
MESRARRAA BB/ PEAR
A
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. MB AR FHTE (&)

114

Nominal
Place of value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued share/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital the Company activities
M, ERITROEE DB EMLRA
MEARERE BERRE R EMER Bat TEXK
Direct Indirect
B =
South China Printing Hong Kong HK$2 — 74.5  Printing
Company (1988) Limited B ordinary shares N Jil
EEDR (—HNAN) 28 T B
BRAF]
Valiant Packaging British Virgin HK$10,000 — 74.5 Investment
(Holdings) Limited Islands/Hong Kong  ordinary shares holding
REBRLES/ 10,000/% 7T REER
s 38 X
Valiant Printing (Far East) Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 — 74.5  Printing
Limited B ordinary shares E Jil
3,000,000% 7T & 8 iX
Wealthpop Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 74.5  Property holding
BEIRBR A A B ordinary shares MEREH
2B T E AR

Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

# The subsidiary is a sino-foreign equity joint venture. It is not
audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other Ernst & Young
International member firms

## The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise

In December 2001, Sing Tao Holdings Limited, a 74.5%
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired a 54%
interest in and a shareholders’ loan of 1t /X 4 & & ;1 X 1k
ERABMREM A A from independent third parties at a
total cash consideration of approximately HK$6,167,000.
Further details of this acquisition are included in note
34(c) to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the period or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets and/or liabilities of the Group. To give
details of all the Company’s subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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* REBBARSAAERIA LT

# ZHBRARA—EhINGERSE  WIFATKERT
B == 7 BT 3% Ernst & Young International f% & A &)
FEIZ

#  ZHEBRARA-ESIIEBELX

ARE—BHEB745% R 2MBAR —
Sing Tao Holdings Limited R =T % — 4 +
— B1A6,167,0008 T 2 IR HK(E - £ Z 1
BYUE=FHBIREFEALERER
BEERASA%Z R ARZ AR ZERRE
oo RIEWEFIBEH N B IRKMFE34(c) °

EZRR AHHEETEZ ERIIHZH
BREIRE IRFRANBERAKREHEE
R/ REEFEZETEIRG -EFERA
HIARARRFAEMBARESRIEBRNIT
= o



41.

42,

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 3 to the financial statements,
due to the adoption of certain new and revised SSAPs
during the current period, the accounting treatment and
presentation of certain items and balances in the financial
statements have been revised to comply with the new
requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments
have been made and certain comparative amounts have
been reclassified to conform with the current period’s
presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 24 April 2002.

41.

42,

EREF

AN B 7% R I AP AL - B AN AR R A
TEaHM kBT ZEFEHEL - FTHE
RERZETRET AR EVHHRR 22
FREKEET  WEFAHBAE - At - B2
REFEFELETHRE  FETHREFTRD
B UNAEAHEZE2RSTA »

RN

EEeN T _FUA-THOBE#EAM
i

Annual Report 2001 #F#g

115



